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SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report, the Director’s report and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regutations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period
In preparnng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the
company'’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

On behalf of the board

Rick Medlock
Director
26 September 2016
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SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The Directors of Ship Midco Limited (“the Company”) present the Strategic Report, together with the Directors’
Report and financ:al statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Principal activity

The Company 1s part of the Worldpay Group (“the Group”) with the ultimate holding company being Worldpay
Group plc  The company recewves ongoing capital, funding and hiquidity resocurces from the Group, which
coupled with the other sources of funding and hquidity enabte the Company to meet its obligations as they fall
due

The pnncipal activity of the Company 1s a holding company in the Group, with its immediate parent company
beng Ship Holdco Limited It 1s a holding company of Worldpay Finance plc {formerly Ship Submidco Limited)

The Directors do not anticipate any matena! change in either the type or level of activities of the Company
Business review

The Directors are satisfied with the Company’s performance in the penod

The Company's financial performance 15 presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 4

The profit before taxation for the penod was £183,510k (2014 loss £113,199k} The profit for the penod was
£204,421 (2014 loss £83,263k) The increased profit in the year 1s due to dividends received from other Group

undertakings

At the end of the financial reporting penod, the financial position showed net assets of £390,619k (2014 assets
£30,096k)

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are presented under Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Frame (“FRS 1017)

Information about the performance of the Company dunng the financial year in response to S417(3) (b) of the
Companies Act 2006 (the Companies Act) 1s included above

Principal nsks and uncertamnties

The Company seeks to minimise its exposure to external financial risks Further information on financial nisk
management policies can be found n the censolidated financial statements of the Company’s uitimate parent
company, Worldpay Group plc, for the year ended 31 December 2015, which are avallable on the Groups
website and from The Walbrook Building, 25 Walbrook, London, EC4N 8AF

On behailf of the board

Rick Medlock
Director
26 September 2016




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The Directors present their report together with the Strateqic Report and financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out in the business review section of the strategic report
An intenm dividend of £4,884k was declared and paid in August 2015 (2014 £nil)
160,985,611 ordinary shares were issued, allotted and paid on 16 October 2016
Directors

The Directors, who served throughout the year except as noted, were as follows

P Jansen

R Kalifa

R Medlock (Appointed 29 Apn! 2015)

J Allan (Resigned 12 October 2015)
L Bass! (Resigned 12 October 2015)
H Battcock (Resigned 12 October 2015)
J Brocklebank (Resigned 12 October 2015)
A Connolly (Resigned 28 April 2015}

S Gent (Resigned 12 October 2015)
R Marshall (Resigned 12 October 2015)
J Paduch {Resigned 12 October 2015)
S Pagluca {Resigned 12 October 2015)
M Scicluna (Resigned 12 October 2015)
C Sullivan {(Resigned 26 February 2015)
D Yates (Resigned 12 October 2015)

Going Concern

The Directors have prepared forecasts for the Group by Business Unit, covenng a period of more than 12 months
from the date of signing of the financial statements Based on these forecasts the Directors have demonstrated that
the Company 1s forecast to have sufficient resources to continue its operation

Therefore the Directors have at the ime of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepanng the financial statements

Auditor

For the year ended 31 December 2015 the Company was entitled {o exemption from an audit under section 479A
of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2015
Notes £'000

Administrative expenses (6,528)
Operating Loss 5 {6,528)
Income from investments 1n group undertakings 6 284771
Interest receivable and similar income 7 5158
Interest payable and similar charges 8 (99,891)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 183,510
Tax credit on profit on ordinary activities 9 20,911

Profit / (loss} after taxation 204,421

The profit and loss accounts and other comprehensive income have been prepared on the
operations are continuing operations

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 15 form an integra! part of these financial statements

2014
£'000

(25,833)

(25,833)

7,213
{94,579)

(113,199)
29,936

{83,263)

basis that all




SHiP MIDCO LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Notes

Fixed assets

Investments 10
Property, plant & equipment 11
Current assets

Current tax assets 12
Debtors 13
Cash and cash equivalents 14

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Borrowings 15
Trade and other payables 16

Net current habilities

Total assets less current lhiabilities

Creditors amounts falling due after more than
Borrowings 15

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 17

Profit and loss account

Total equity

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements

2015
£'000

1,504 441
27

1,504,468

21,285
261674
2

282,961

(1,396,810)
(1,396,810)

(1,113,849)

390,619

390619

210,986
179,633

390,619

2014
£'000

1,441,993
50

1,442,043

23,719
154,920
64

178,703

(52,211)

(652,817)

(705,028)

(526,325)

915,718

(885,622)

30,086

50,000

(19,904)

30,006

For the year ending 31 December 2015 the Company was entitled to exemption from audit under section 479A of

the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies

Directors’ responsibilities

s« The members have not required the Company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in

accordance with section 476,

e The Directors acknowledge their responsibiliies for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect
to accounting records and the preparation of accounts

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 26 September 2016

Signed on its behalf by

Rick Medlock
Director
Company Registration No 07329558




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Balances at 1 January 2014

Loss for the year

Balances at 31 December 2014

Profit for the year

Ordinary shares 1ssued in the year
Dividends paid

Balances at 31 December 2015

Share Profit and loss Total
capital accounts
£000 £'000 £'000
50,000 63,359 113,359
- (83,263) (83,263)
50,000 (19,904) 30,006
- 204,421 204,421
160,986 - 160,986
- (4,884) (4,884)
210,986 179,633 390,619

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1

1

12

13

14

Accounting policies

Accounting convention

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (“FRS 1017) The amendments to FRS 101 (2013/14 Cycle) issued in July 2014 and
effective iImmediately have been applied

In preparng these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (*Adopted IFRSs™), but
makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below
where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken

In the transition to FRS101 from Adopted IFRSs, the Company has made no measurement and recognition
adjustments

The financial statements contain information about the Company as an individual company and do not contain
consoldated financial information as the parent of a group The company 15 exempt under IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the
requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions avallable under FRS 101 1n respect of
the following disclosures

+ A Cash Flow Statement and related notes,

« Comparative period reconcilatiens for share capital, tangible fixed assets, intangible assets,
» Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidianes,

+ Disclosures in respect of capital management,

- The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs, and

+ Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking, Worldpay Group plc includes the Company in its consohdated
financial statements The consolidated financial statements of Worldpay Group plc are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and are available to the public and may be obtained on the
Group’s website or at 25 Walbrook, London EC4N 8AF

Going concern

The Directors have prepared forecasts for the group by Business Unit, covering a penod of more than 12
months for the date of signing of the financial statements Based on these forecasts the Directors have
demonstrated that the Company Is forecast to be profitable, cash generative and to have net assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
Investments n subsichary undertakings purchased from companies under common control are transferred
across at carrying value

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash In hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term hquid
investments with onginal matunties of three months or less, and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current iabihties




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

156

16

Accounting policies {(continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the company's statement of financial position when the company becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets are classified into specified categones The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and 1s determined at the time of recognition

Financial assets are initatly measured at farr value plus transaction costs, other than those classified as at far
value through profit and loss, which are measured at fair value

Loans and receivables

Trade debtors, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as 'loans and receivables' Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methed, less any impairment

Interest 1s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term recewvables when the
recogrmtion of interest would be immatenial The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period The effective
interest rate i1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the
debt instrument to the net carrying amount on imtial recognition

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of imparrment
at each reporting end date

Financial assets are impared where there 1s objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the inihal recegnition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been affected

Derecogrition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to another entity

Financial hahilities

Financial iabilies are classified as either financial habilittes at far value through profit and loss or other
financial habilties

Other financral habilities

Other financial liabiihes, including barrowings, are tially measured at far value, net of transaction costs
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial iabiity and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial hability io the net carrying amount on
inthial recogmition

Derecogmition of financial liabrities

Financial habiitties are derecognised when, and only when, the company’s oblgations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1.7

18

Accounting policies (continued)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the profit and loss account because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes dems that are never taxable or deductible The company's
habihty for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting end date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of
taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax habilittes are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s
probable that taxable profits will be avalable against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised
Such assets and hlabihities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the imitial
recognition of other assets and habiliies in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent
that 1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits willi be available to allow ail or part of the asset to be
recovered Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
1s settled or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax 15 charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is aiso dealt with In
equity Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when the company has a legally enforceable nght to offset
current tax assets and habilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authonty

Auditors' remuneration

The audit fees of the Company s £nil (2014 £10k) for the year




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3 Employees
During 2012 all staff had their employment contracts transferred to a different Group company (WorldPay
(UK) Limited) Therr costs have been included by way of a management recharge, however the headcount
15 included within WorldPay (UK) Limited
4 Directors’ remuneration
The Directors of the Company do not receive remuneration for specific services to this company nor is 1t
possible to accurately apportion the total remuneration paid to the Directors to the individual companies in the
Worldpay Group Detalls of the Director's remuneration {including the highest paid Director) are disclosed in
the financial statements of Worldpay Group ple, a UK parent company
5  Profit before tax 2015 2014
£000 £'000
Operating loss before tax 1s stated after charging
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (23) (21)
Loss on Disposal of property, plant and equipment - (4)
(23) (25)
6 Income from investments in group undertakings 2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Income from investments in group undertakings 284,771 -
The income from investments in group undertakings relates to dividends of £222 323k in August and £62,448k
in Octeber received from Worldpay Finance ple (fermerly Ship Submidco Limited)
7 Interest receivable and similar income 2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Interest receivable from other Group undertakings 5,158 7,213

Interest income 1s accrued on the intercompany loan receivable from Worldpay Finance plc




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

8 Interest payable and similar charges 2015 2014
£'000 £'000

Interest on borrowings 40,784 53,850
Amortisation of capitalised finance costs 32,451 6,862
Interest payabie to Group undertakings 27,289 23,422
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (1,699) 9,094
Other finance costs 1,066 1,351
99,891 94 579

9 Taxation

2015 2014
£'000 £'000

Corporation tax
UK corporation tax credit for the year 21,281 23,716
Adjustments in respect of prior years (370} 6,220
20,911 29,936

The credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit/{loss) per the profit and loss account as follows

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Profit/(Loss) before taxation on continued operations 183,510 (113,199)
Expected tax (charge)/credit at statutory rate 20 25% (2014 21 5%) (37,154) 24330
Permanent differences - (4)
Expenses non deductible (326) (2,159)
Adjustment in respect of prior penods (370) 6219
Income not taxed 58.761 1.550

Actual tax credit for the year 20,311 29.9_36




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

10 Investments

2015
£'000
Investments in subsidianes 1,504,441
Investment in Worldpay Finance plc 1,504 441

2014
£'000

1,441,993

1,441,993

Additional £62m invested in Worldpay Finance plc as a result of converting $95 8m USD preference shares

into Ordinary shares in October 2015

Cost

At 1 January 2015
Addihons

At 31 December 2015

11 Property, plant and equipment

£'000

1,441,993

62,448

1,504,441

Motor Vehicles

£'000
Cost
At 1 January 2015 69
At 31 December 2015 69
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2015 (19)
Charge for the year (23)
At 31 December 2015 (42}
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 27
At 31 December 2014 50
12 Current tax assets
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Current tax assets 21,285 23,719
13 Debtors
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Prepayments, accrued income and other receivables 721 1,765
Amounts due from group undertakings 260,953 153,155
261,674 154,920

e T ———




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash balances

15 Borrowings

2015 2014
£'000 £000
2 64

Current  Non-current 2015 Total Current Non-current 2014 Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Senior Debt - - - 52,211 885,622 937,833
The Company’s borrowings in 2014 were on the following terms
GBP Repayment LIBOR
Facility £000 ccy type Coupon Rate floor
Senior - Facility A Loans 32486 GBP  Amortising LIBOR + 4 00% 125%
Senior - Facility B1A - | Loans 14,621 GBP  Bullet LIBOR + 4 75% 125%
Senior — Facility B1A -Il Loans 296,181 GBP  Bullet LIBOR + 4 75% 1 25%
Senior — Facility B1B - | Loans 815 GBP  Bullet LIBOR + 4 75% 125%
Sentor — Facility B1B - Il Loans 58434 GBF  Bullet LIBOR + 4 75% 125%
Senior - Acquisition 60367 GBP  Bullet LIBOR + 4 75% 125%
Senior - CAR 50554 GBP  Amortising LIBOR + 4 00% 1 25%
Senior - RCF 50,170 GBP  Revolver LIBOR + 4 00% 125%
Faciity C1 Loans 249499 GBP  Bullet LIBOR + 4 50% 125%
Faciity C3 Loans 124,706 EUR  Bullet EURIBOR + 4 00% 125%
TOTAL 937,833

The semor bank borrowings were subject to financial conditions as defined in the Senior Facilites Agreement
The financial covenants define imits for the cash flow cover, interest cover, leverage and capital expenditure
Covenant adherence has been tested with respect to these financtal statements and all requirements have

been met

The senior facihties were repaid during 2015

16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Accruals and deferred income
Amounts due to Group Undertakings
Other habilities

17 Share capital

Ordinary share capital

Issued and fully paid

Balance at 1* January 2015
Ordinary shares 1ssued in year
Balance at 31st December 2015

2015 2014
£'000 £000

1 1,872

1,666 4,220
1,392,389 646,725
2,754 -

1 396,810 652 817
£'000

50,000

160,986

210,986

160,985,611 ordinary shares of £1 each were 1ssued, allotted and paid on 16 Qctober 2016




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

18

17

Controlling party

The Company 1s part of the Worldpay Group (“the Group”) with the ultimate holding company being Worldpay
Group plc, incorporated and registered in England and Wales, and its immediate parent company 1s Ship
Holdco Limited, incorporated and registered in England and Wales

As at 31 December 2015, Worldpay Group ple heads the largest and the smallest group in which the Company
Is consolidated The consolidated financial statements are availlable on the Groups website and from The
Walbrook Buillding, 25 Walbrook, London, EC4N 8AF

Subsidianies

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 are as follows

Country of OrdinaryNature of business
incorporation shares held
(%)

Worldpay (UK} Limited England 100 00%Prowvision of terminal card payment clearing
services

Worldpay Limited England 100 00% Prowision of online card payment clearing
services

Worldpay Limited Jersey 100 00% Holding Company

Worldpay eCommerce Limited England 100 00%Holding Company

Cardsave Group Limited England 100 00%Prowvision of merchant terminals and related
membership services

Worldpay AP Limited England 100 00% Prowvision of alternative card payment clearing
services

YESPay International Limited England 100 00% Prowvision of innovation all \n one solutions for
payment processing

Tayvin 348 Limited England 100 00%Holding Company

Yes-Secure com Limited England 100 00% Suppoert YESPay International Limited

Cardsave Acquisitions Limited England 100 00% Suppert Cardsave Group Limited

Cardsave Community Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Cardsave Holdings Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Cardsave Online Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Cardsave Merchant Services England 100 00% Suppor Cardsave Group Limited

Limited

Cardsave (UK) Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Cardsave EBT Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Cardsave Finance Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Modacs Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Cardsave Terminals Limited England 100 00% Support Cardsave Group Limited

Worldpay Latin Amenca Limited  England 100 00%Provision of approval technology and other
card payment services to merchants

Payment Trust Limited England 100 00%Online payments cleanng

Worldpay B V Netherlands 100 00%Provision of terminal and online card payment
cleanng services

YESPay International Limited Canada 100 00%Supporl YESPay International Limited

YESPay IT services (India) Private India 100 00%Support YESPay International Limited

Limited

EBOT IT Services Private Limited India 100 00% Support YESPay International Limited




SHIP MIDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Enviado Transacciones Sociedad
Limitada

Envoy Services Bulgarna Limited

Envoy Services South Afnca (Pty)
Limited

Envoy Services Denmark APS
Envoy Services Pty Limited
Worldpay Sweden AB

Canadian Envoy Technology
Services Limited

Envoy Services OU
Worldpay Canada Corporation
Worldpay Pte Ltd

Worldpay K K
Bibit Payment K K

Biit Secure Internet Payments Inc
Worldpay SARL
Bibit Span S LU

Worldpay Pty Lid
Worldpay Finance PLC

Country of

OrdinaryNature of bustness

incorporation shares held

Spain

Bulgana
South Afnca

Denmark
Australia
Sweden
Canada
Estonia
Canada
Singapore

Japan
Japan

USA
France
Spain

Australia
England

1oLY

100 00% Support Woridpay AP Limited

100 00% Support Worldpay AP Limited
100 00% Support Worldpay AP Limited

100 00% Support Worldpay AP Limited
100 00% Support Wortdpay AP Limited
100 00% Support Worldpay AP Limited
100 00% Support Worldpay AP Limited

100 00% Support Worldpay AP Limited

100 00%Research and development

100 00% Distnbution of Worldpay TM e-commerce
solutions

100 00%Prowvision of card payment clearning services

100 00% Prowvision of approval technology and other
card payment services to merchants

100 00%Prowvision of approval technology and other
card payment services to merchants

100 00% Provision of approval technology and other
card payment services {0 merchants

100 00% Prowvision of approval technology and other
card payment services to merchants

100 00% Provision of terminal card payment clearing
100 00%Holding company




PRINCIPAL RISK 8: Third parties

Movement In the year
No change

Link to strategy

We use technology and our products to differentiate from the competition page 44
We will expand in existing markets, and enter new ones page 46

We will realise the full potential of our business model page 48

The risk of loss from reliance on third parties carrying cut core business activities

Risk appetite

Worldpay 15 willing to accept the nisk of working with third parties for core business activities However, contracts and relationships with
critical supphers must be well-monitored, value for money and regularly reviewed In addrtion, regulatory requirements relating to sourcing
must be met

Risk indicators
+  Core supplers all contracted on a long-term basis to suit business strategy and need
¢ Performance of core suppliers against agreed service levels
*  Issues identified in quarterly service reviews with the business and supplers

Potential impacts
*  Suppliers critical to Worldpay’s success are unable to meet the capability levels required
s  Non-comphance with FCA Regulation relating to Supplier Management
s Inconsistent and/or undesirable approach to the sourcing and management of key supphers

Mitlgants

Worldpay has a dedicated procurement team staffed by purchasing professionals to manage external contractual arrangements
The n-house legal team is involved in all contractual discussions

SLAS and service reviews are held with all key external supplers

We regularly monitor parformance of core suppliers against agreed service levels

Actions wn 2015
e Created a centralised contracts database
Contracts renegonated, on service levels and terms and conditions, with strategically sigmificant suppliers
Engaged Strategic Suppher Management and Procurement in all Worldpay souraing activity
Sourcing regulatory requirements 1dentified and communicated
Supplier Security Risk reviews undertaken by Enterprise Security



UK membership of the European Union

The UK Gavernment has announced that a referendum will be held on 23 June 2016 to decide whather the UK should remain in the European
Union (‘'EU’) At Worldpay, we have analysed what this could mean for our business A possible effect on Worldpay would be from magro-
economic disruption, which may impact a proportion of the merchants we serve in the UK and Europe, and therefore our transactiona! flows
As a significant proportion of the regulatory regime we operate within comes from the EU, an exit may also change the framework applicable
to our European operations

However, given the global nature of our business and our expenience working across multiple regulatory regimes, our current expectationis
that this would not have a matenal effect on our business overall

Golng concern

In considering the going concern basis for prepanng the financial statements, the Board have reviewed the Group's trading forecasts for the
12-month penod from the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts These forecasts, which include detailed cash flow projections,
comprise assumptians as to sales and profit performance by operating division and by month The forecasts demonstrate the Group's ability to
operate withtn its current borrowing facilities They also illustrate that the Group has significant covenant and hquidity headroom in its
borrowing facilities to supportits operations for the foreseeable future

Notwithstanding the above, however, there remains a risk that a downturn in the economy could result inthe Group’s sales and profits being
worse than the Board 15 currently enwisaging As 3 result, the Directors have also reviewed forecasts which include sensitivities that make
allowance for this nsk Should such a scenano arise, the Directors are confident they have adequate liquidity and covenant headroom to
ensure that the Group can meet its liab:littes as they fall due for the foreseeable future

Accordingly, the Directors believe that it 1s appropnate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

Viability statement

In accordance with proviston C 2 2 of the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code, the Directors have assessed the viabdity of the Group over the
three years to December 2018 This assessment has been made taking account of the current position of the Group, the corporate planming
process and the Group’s principal nsks

The corporate planning process includes the preparation of the annual budget as well as the Group’s longer-term strategic plan The strategic
plan provides medwum to long-term direction for the Group and 15 reviewed on an annual basis It includes a five-year cutlook for the business
However, the Directors have determined that a three-year penod 1s a more appropriate penod over which to assess the viability of the Group
as this provides a much greater degree of certainty This is because the majority of contracts with custamers are for a peniod of three years or
less In addition, we operate in fast-growing and dynamic markets which makes it difficult to predict how regulations will evolve beyond a
three-year timeframe and what the consequential impact might be on the Group's activities

As part of the strategic planming process, the Board carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those that
could threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or iquidity Eight principal risks have been Identified as follows industry
change, legal and regulatory change, settlement nisk, credit nisk, data security, technology risk, scale of change, and reliance on third parties
carrying out core business activities These principal risks, together with potential impacts and mitigations, are set out on pages S8 to 65 of the
Strategic report Stress tests are performed on the financial plan after considering the potential impact of pnncipat risks and uncertanties

The geographical and sector diversification of the Group’s operations helps minimise the risk of seripus business interruption or catastrophic
damage to our reputation Furthermore, our business model Is structured so that the Group is not reliant on one particular group of customers
or sector No single customer accounts for more than 3% of Group net revenue and our top ten customers account for less than 12% of Group
revenue

In addition to management’s and the Board's review of the output from the annual strateglc planning process, the IPO process that took pface
in 2015 also provided further scrutiny and analysis of the strateglc plan

The Directors have concluded, based on the extent of the Group's strategic planning process and its strong financial position, that there 15 a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to remain in operation and meet its labilities as they fall due over the next
three years




Operating review

Worldpay operates in three prncipal markets — Globa! eCom, the UK and the US These markets are descnbed on page 43 of the ‘Our strategy’
section of the Strategic report

The financ:al information presented and discussed in this review 15 based on undertying financial performance and includes pro forma preor
year comparatives

GLOBAL ECOM

Our Global eCom division focuses on large, internet-fed multinatronals that operate in fast-growtng markets and have complex payment needs
We provide a wide range of payment services, both online and by mobule, te accept, validate and settle payments in 126 currencies across 146
countries, using any one of over 300 payment methods Our customers also use our payments technology to maximise the rate at which
payments are approved, manage the nisk of fraud, and optimise thetr costs of operating globally

We focus on five priority verticals Digital Content, Global Retail, Airlines, Regulated Gambling and Travel Through this focus, we build our
knowledge and expertise of our customers’ businesses and the specific needs of their own industry as it relates to payments

In 2015, we enhanced the value of what we offer to our customers through a sertes of improvements to our products and services |

We launched a set of upgrades to our core payment capabilities, including ‘Hosted Payment Pages’, a tokenisation service and ‘Worldpay
Edge’ ‘Hosted Payment Pages’ allow a secure and seamless transiion upon checkout from a customer’s shopping website 1o our own
payments pages Our tokenisation service replaces the shopper’s card details with a ‘single-use’ card number that cannot be used for any
future payments and 1s therefore useless to a potential hacker “Worldpay Edge’ 15 3 deep data analytics service that allows customers to
better understand shapper behaviour and performance

We expanded the reach of our payments network mto more markets, allowing more of our customers the ability to expand globally, with
licences in Canada and Japan We were one of the first payment companies to support Appla’s launch of Apple Pay in the UK and Europe, and
we have integrated our payments platform to new local payment methods, for example Billdesk (used in Indha) and TenPay (used in China)

Performance review

Our Global eCom dvision had another strong year of growth in 2015 with transactions up 31% to 3 8 bihion, driven by increased volumes
across a range of products and verticals Average transaction values fell 12% year-on-year, however, as a significant proportion of the volume
growth came from verticals where high volume, low value transactions domnate, such as Digital Cantent and Global Retail

Net revenue increased by £45 7m, or 17%, to £317 7m i the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 £272 Om), with net acquiring incomel,
treasury management and foreign exchange services2 and gateway income accounting for the majority of the increase

Pro forma

Year ended year ended
31 Decernber 31 December Year-on-year
2015 014 change
Net revenue (Em) 3177 2720 17%
Underiying EBITDA (Em) 184.2 1615 14%
Total transactions (bn) 38 29 31%
Total transacbon value (Ebn) 933 855 16%

Average transaction value (£) 25.9 293 {12)% !

Net revenue/transaction value (%} 032% 032% -

1 Net acquiring Income Is defined us transaction service charges less interchange and scheme fees Transacuon service charges are payable for services provided to process
transactions between the customer snd an acquiring bank, which Is a bank that accepts card payments from the carg-lssuing banks
2 Income from treasury mansgement and forelgn exchange sernces ls generated on sextling foreign currency transactions on behalf of tustomers

Net acquiring income grew by 20% in 2015 as a result of new business wins and growth of existing customers, particularly 1in Digital Content,
Travel and Global Retall Scheme fees tncreased significantly during the period, largely as a result of volume growth and country mix In
addstion, a number of new rules and fees were implemented by the schemes in the year which increased fees further The majority of these
increases were charged on to customers

Revenue from treazsury management and foreign exchange services grew by 22% year-on-year as a result of increased volumes In Aurhines,
Travel and Digital Content Gateway income was also up 26%, driven by valume increases in Globa! Retail and Travel and the contribution from
Cobre Bem, our provider of gateway service solutions in Latin America

Global eCom's underlying net revenue as a percentage of total transaction value remained strong at 0 32% for the year ended 31 December
2015, in line with the prior year




Underlying EBITDA increased by £22 7m, or 14%, to £184 2m i the year ended 31 December 2015 {2034 £161 5m) This increase was driven
printipally by the growth in net revenue noted above but was offset, 1n part, by £22 9m higher cperating costs year-on-year This increase in
operating costs partly reflects the growth i revenue, but also the investments we have made in people and capability, in both 2014 and 2015,
to develop the orgamisation and deliver further sales growth in the future In addition, bad debts increased compared to the prior year

WPUK
WPUK provides in-store, phone, online and mobile payment acceptance solutions for approximately 300,000 UK and Ireland-based customers,
from SMEs to large corporates {including Tesco, Asda and Next)

To strengthen Worldpay’s leadership in the UK, our strategy 1s to evolve from simple payment processing to become an added-value payment

services and solutions partner for our merchants, across all of our market segments - SME, Small Corporate and Large Corporate The strategy
has three strands, with core growth being driven by a focus on ‘Brilhiant Basics’ and ‘Multi-Service Penetration’, while we also seek new growth
oppertunities from transformational products and services

The success of ‘Bniliant Basics’ can be seen in the number of new merchants on-boarded through our core channels, which increased
significantly during the second half of 2015 We achieved this through a focus on Increasing lead generation, improving sales conversion, and
working to tmprove the overall end-to-end effictency of our sales model, including the final stages of the Cardsave integration Further
improvements in our merchant retention operations, combined with a focus on improving customer experience by addressing the common
causes of complaints, also led to a reduction in overall churn rates in the second half of the year

We also made significant progress with ‘Multi-Service Penatration’ The penetration of ecommerce/CNF products amongst new merchants
grew by 12% in the last 12 months, driven by a clear focus across our marketing and sales teams Duning Q4, we implemented a ‘sales-through-
service’ pilot to promote cross-sales activit:es within the customer service desk Following the success of this pilot, we plan to roll out the
initiative to full capacity during 2016 Finally, in Q4, we launched Worldpay Business Finance in partnership with Liberis to provide UK SMEs
with access to flexible financing via a business cash advance To date over £2m of funding has been provided to our merchants by Liberis, and
we axpect to continue to build on this progress in 2016

Transformational products and services are the dnvers for both new revenue growth and increased merchant engagement In May 2015, we
launched My Business Dashboard, our onhne reporting portal for SME customers, and it had over 14,000 active users by the end of the year
My Business Hub, a tablet-based smart paint-of-sale solution, was launched in pilot with a small number of merchants in Q4 We have recewved
extremely positive feedback on both products and they will be scaled up sigmificantly in 2016 Worldpay Total and Worldpay Total Mobile, our
omnichannel solutions for corporate customers, continued to register strong sales in the Large Corporate sector These products have been
instrumental in winning new Corporate business against our key competitors, as well as cross-selling new services to existing Corporate
customers

Pro forma
Yaar anded year ended
31 Dexember 31 December Year-onyear

ms 04 change
Net revenue (Em) 405.2 3660 11%
Underlying EBITDA {£m) 1792 1561 15%
Total transactions (bn} 54 SO 8%
Total transaction value (£bn) 2028 196 6 3%
Average transaction value (£) 375 392 (4)%
Net revenueftransaction value (%) 0.20% 019% -

Performance review

Our WPUK division grew strongly in 2015 wath transactions up 8% to 5 4 billion, driven by new customer wins tn both the Corporate and SME
sectors and continuing growth in the use of cards as 2 payment mechanism Average transactlon values fell 4% year-on-year, however,
reflecting high street price competition, particularly in the supermarket sector where Worldpay has a high market share, and changing
consumer behaviour as the use of contactless mcreases

Net revenue increased by £39 2m, or 11%, to £405 2m in the year ended 31 December 2015 {2014 £366 Om), with net acquiring income
accounting for the majority of the increase Net acquiring income grew by 18% reflecting the impact of higher transaction volumes and
effective management of pncing on new business and renewals, as well as a net positive impact of lower interchange costs on the acquinng
margin which funded the enhancement of our propositions for customers

Ancillary income’ grew by 9% year-on-year as a result of increases in authonsation, gateway and other fees

WPUK's net revenue as a percentage of total transaction value increased slightly to 0 20% for the year ended 31 December 2015 from 0 19% in
the prior year, reflecting a change in mix ta more credit card transactions and commercial pricing decisions

Underlying EBITDA increased by £23 1m, or 15%, to £179 2m in the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 £156 1m) This improvement was
driven by the growth in net revenue noted above and streng cost control, underpinned by a drive towards greater efficiency Operating costs
increased in the year by £4 7m, or 3%, reflecting the higher volumes as well as investment ta dnive future growth The cost growth was ata
significantly lower rate than the net revenue growth, leading to an gverall improvement in profit margin




WPUS

WPUS provides in-store, online and mobile payment acceptance solutions for US-based customers, with a focus on developing omm-channel
and integrated payment solutions for its approximately 109,000 SME customers, and vertical-specric solutions for its approximately 13,000
enterprise customers in the Grocery, Petroleum, Restaurant and Retail industries in addition, we provide ATM services to approxamately 100
organisations across the United States

Our Corporate Business Unit, focused on targer clients operating nationally, continued to grow strongly in 2015 Our strategy to differentiate in
this segment using a service-based approach to different vertical industries — especially Petroleum, Quick Serve Restaurants and Grocery
Retail, where customer needs and requirements are often unique ~ 15 being validated with significant growth in locations, transactions and
revenues Furthermore, our competitive, value-based and high touch approach to clients is driving long-term client retention and hie-time
value During 2015, we added to our vertical speciahsms by extending our reach i the growing and attractive official payments sector that
comprises federal, state and local government payments as well as utility payments

WPUS’ Small Business Unit 1s focused on delivering powerful but affordable payment solutions to SMEs across the Unites States through
multiple routes to market In 2015, we delivered strong performance in terms of new sales and customer retention We also continued our
transfarmational journey to become a leading payment processing partner to the thousands of software, hardware and technolegy providers
that power the pont-of-sale environment for the more than seven million small and medium-sized businesses across the country Customer
acquisition in the Small Business Unit 1s delvered through a range of bath direct and indirect/partner channels

In order to accelerate our evolution to be the payments partner of choice, we completed our integration of the SecureNet bustness and have
delivered the forecast operational efficiencias in line with our expectations We have now built a technical connection between the SecureNet
platform and the WPUS Lynk platform that will allow clients to have access to the ease of technical integration offered through SecureNet, as
well as to the nch payment processing features that we already possess

The US marketplace s moving to the EMV payment standard, requinng merchants to upgrade ther point-of-sale systems to accept EMV chip-
based cards Over the past year, WPUS invested heavily in EMV, middieware and unattended testing tools, simplifying the certification process,
as well as creating a repeatable, scalable solution for merchants and partners We will continue to invest further in EMV in 2016

1 Ancillary Income includes fees charged per transaction for providing gateway services, fraud and risk management sernces, float income, and charges levied for the acceptance of
alternotive payments Gateway services work In the same manner as transaction processing services, but are provided for online teansactions only

We also made sigrificant progress in certifying integrated software vendors (1Svs'), partners, and merchants Duning the year, we signed over
80 partners, including partners providing services now Integrated into our SME payment solutions, together with partners prowiding referrals
and other sources of new customer income streams

In additian to payment processing, we continued to offer value added services, such as third-party working caprtal solutions delivered through
the payment processing and settlement cycle, which provide financing options outside of traditional bank loans to help SMEs manage and
grow their business

Performance review

Qur WPUS division had a solid year of growth in 2015 with transactions up 9% to 3 8 billion, driven by increased volumes across all business
segments as well as the acquisition of SecureNet Average transaction values decreased by 2% year-on-year, reflecting developments in the
Petroleum vertical where a decline in wholesale ol prices resulted in lower prices to consumers at the pump

Net ravenue increased by £33 4m, or 15%, to £258 8m in the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 £225 4m) Excluding the impact of the
SecureNet acquisition in December 2014 and the foreign currency translation impact, net revenue increased by £7 1m, or 3% This incraase
was driven principally by growth tn acquiring income, reflecting the increase in transaction volumes Netrevenue as a percentage of total
transact:ion value remained in hne with the prior year at 0 26%

Underlying EBITDA decreased by £13 1m, or 17%, to £62 3m in the year ended 31 December 2015 {2014 £75 4m) Excluding the impact of the
SecureNet acquisition and the foreign currenty translation impact, underlying EBITDA decreased by £14 4m, or 17% Operating costs
(excluding SecureNet and foreign currency translation) increased by £16 Sm, reflecting increased costs payable to third-party sales agents and
additional investment In people, security and office costs to delwer the strategy In addition, bad debt provisions increased year-on-year by

£3 8m

SecureNet, which was purchased in December 2014, contnibuted £9 7m to net revenue in the year {2014 £0 3m) and made a loss of £4 4m
(2014 loss of £0 2m) Net revenue was significantly lower than expected due to slower than expected sign-up of new partners Jo offset this
shortfall, however, certain synergies were reahsed earlier than antictpated, primarily through a workforce reduction As a result, overall
performance was in line with our expectations




The Directors beheve strongly that we have the right strategy and people in place to deliver sustainable growth in the future but it will take

longer than previously anticipated to achieve and we will incur additional costs as a result

Pro forma

Year ended year ended
31 December 31 December Year-Grryeat
ms 2004 change
Net revenue {£m) 2588 2254 15%
Underlying EBITDA {£m) 623 754 {17)%
Tota! transactions {bn} 38 as 9%
Tota! transaction vatue {Sbn) 1526 1439 6%
Average transaction value ($) 397 a7 (2)%
Net revenue/transaction value (%) 026% 026% -




Financial review

Income statement
Pro forma
Year encled year ended
31 December 31 December Year-onyear
015 2014 change
tm m %
Revenue 39630 3,626 6 9%
Interchange and scheme fees (2,981 3) {2,7632) 8)%
Net revenue’ 9817 8634 14%
Gross profit 860 4 7653 12%
Undertying EBITDA” 806.1 3747 8%
Undertying depreciation and amortisation (65 6) (78 4) 16%
Undertying finance costs {151.2) {163 2) 7%
Share of result of joint venture and assocrate {1.2) (03)
Underhying profit before tax 188.1 1328 42%
Separately disclosed tems
=~ affecting EBITDA (1037) (88 6)
- affecung depreciation and amortisation (699) 827}
- affecting finance {costs)/Income 4.6 {8 6)
1169.0) 179 9) 6%
Profit/(loss) before tax 191 {47 1}
Tax charge {a8 9) {29)
Loss for the year (29.8) {50 0} 40%
Earnungs per share
Underlying pro forma £PS (p)” 69 46 50%
Reported EPS (p) {1L8) 31) 42%

1 Net revenue is defined as revenue less Interchange and scheme fees

2 Undertying EGITDA s defined ss eamings before Interest, tax, depredation and amortisation It also excludes separately disclosed items

3 Undertying pro forma earnings per share Is calculated by taking profit/loss for the period before separstely disclosed ttems, divided by the number of shares In Issue at the en¢ of
2015

The information presented and discussed in this section includes a number of measures that are not defined or recognised under [FRS
including net revenue, underlying EBITDA, underlying pro forma earnings per share and free cash flow These are considered to be key
measures of the Group's fmancial performance and as such have been included here to aid comparability and enhance usefulness

Net revenue, defined as revenue less interchange and scheme fees, is presented and discussed In this section as the Directors believe that this
best reflects the relationship between revenue and profitability Underlying EBITDA, being earnings before interest, tax, depreciatron and
amortisation, excluding separately disclosed stems, Is considered by the Directors to give a fairer view of the year-on-year companson of
underlying trading performance Separately disclosed items are costs or income that have been recognised in the income statement which the
Directors believe, due to their nature or size, should be disclosed separately to give a more comparable view of the year-on-year underlying
financial performance These are explained further later In this section

Underlying pro forma earnings per share 1s calculated by taking profit/loss for the period before separately disclosed tems, divided by the
number of shares in issue at the end of 2015 Free cash flow represents the Group’s net cash inflow from cperating activities, after accounting
for the Group's net capital expenditure and underlying finance costs It excludes any working capital movements associated with the IPO The
Directors believe that free cash flow provides a better refiection of the cash being generated by the business

On 3 July 2015, in contemplation of the 1PO, the Company changed its financial year end from 30 November to 31 December As a result, the
statutory comparative period to the 2015 financial statements Is the one month to 31 December 2014 To aid comparatility and uaderstanding




of performance, however, we have presented pro forma comparative information for the 12 months to 31 December 2014 in this section The
statutory one-month comparative information can be found In the Financial statements section of this Report

Revenue

Revenue In the year of £3,963 0m (2014 £3,626 6m) was £336 4m, or 9%, higher than in the prior year Excluding the Impact of acquisitions
during the current and prior period (SecureNet and Cobre Bem) and the foreign currency translation Impact on our WPUS revenue, growth was
S% This growth reflects a 23% increase in our Global eCom business and a 6% increase in WPUS, partly offset by an 8% reduction in WPUK

The increase in Global eCom reflects strong volume growth across alt verticals, particularly in acquining, treasury management and foreign
exchange services and gateway income The decling in WPUK reflects the impact on customers of reductions in cross-border acquired
interchange costs in January 2015 and Visa and MasterCard repricing in 2015 The 6% underlying growth in WPUS was driven printipally by
growth in acquinng income, reflecting an increase m transactlon volumes

SecureNet contributed £31 5m {2014 £1 Om) to revenue in the year and Cobre Bem contnbuted £1 4m {2014 £nil) The foreign exchange
impact on translation of our WPUS results accounted for £127 1m of revenue growth year-on-year

Net revenue

Net revenue increased by £118 3m, or 14% year-on-year, to £981 7m (2014 £863 4m) Excluding the impact of acquisitions and foreign
currency translation on our WPUS revenue, growth was 10% Thes growth reflects a 16% Increase in our Global eCom businass, an 11% increase
i WPLK and a 3% increase in WPUS

The increase in Global eCom reflects the same factors as for revenue above In WPUK, an increase In transaction volumes and net acquinng
income accounted for the majority of the increase In WPUS, the 6% growth in revenue was partly offset by higher interchange and scheme
fees

SecureNet contnibuted £9 7m (2014 £0 3m) to net revenue (n the year and Cobre Bem contnbuted £1 3m (2014 £nll) The foreign exchange
impact on translation of our WPUS results accounted for £17 Om of net revenue growth year-on-year

Further detalls on the segmental breakdown of net revenue performance 1s provided in the Operating review

Gross profit

Gross profit increased by £95 1m, or 12% year-on-year, to £860 4m (2014 £765 3m) Excluding the impact of acquisitions and foreign currency
translation on our WPUS gross profit, growth was 10% Thus reflects an 18% increase in our Global eCom business, an 8% increase in WPUK and
a 1% increase 1n WPUS

The increase in Global eCom was driven from the revenue improvements noted above In WPUK and WPUS, increased referral commission
payments to partners reduced the underlying gross profit growth

Underlying personnel and net operating expenses
Underlying personnel and net operating expenses increased by £63 7m, or 16% year-on-year, to £454 3m (2014 £390 6m) Excluding the
impact of acquisitions and foreign currency translation on our WPUS expenses, the increase was 11%

The increase year-on-year reflacts higher wages and salarles due to a higher average number of employees, as well as other operating costs
associated with supparting the growth in revenue, including the costs of organisational investments made in 2014 in addition, bad debt
expenses increased by £6 3m, to £22 5m, in the year

The average number of employees increased to 4,582 from 4,518 in the prior year The Increase was princlpally driven by recruitment of
personnel to enhance capabilities in sales, marketing and lead generation, product development, product management and data analytics

Underlying personnel and net operating expenses in SecureNet amounted to £10 7m (2014 £0 4m) in the year with costs in Cobre Bem
amounting to £2 8m (2014 €0 5m) The foretgn exchange impact on translation of our WPUS results accounted for an increase of £7 9m year-
on-year

Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBITDA increased by £31 4m, or B% year-on-year, to £406 1m (2014 £374 7m) Excluding the Impact of acquisitions and foreign
currency translation on our WPUS EBITDA, the growth was 8% This reflects an Increase In aet revenue for the Group of 10%, partly offset by
higher third-party comrmussion expenses and higher underlying personnel and net operating costs as we continue to invest In arganisational
capability to support future growth

The underlying EBITDA growth of 8% reflected a 15% increase in Global eCom and WPUK, partly offset by a 17% decline in WPUS and a 7%
increase in Corporate costs

SecureNet reported a loss at the underlying EBITDA level of £4 4m (2014 loss of £0 2m) and Cobre Bem reported a loss of £1 5m (2014 loss of
£0 5m) The foretgn exchange impact on translation of our WPUS results accounted for £5 4m of underlying EBITDA growth year-on-year

Further detads on the segmental breakdown of undertying EBITOA performance 1s provided in the Operatng review
Underlying depreciation and amartisation

Underlying depreciation and amortisation decreased by £12 8m, or 16% year-on-year, to £65 6m (2014 £78 4m] The decrease largely reflects
lower charges in 2015 on items of software, computer equipment and terminals that existed at the time of the divestment from RBS and that




had been fully depreciated at the end of 2014 While additions to computer software have increased during the year, this includes intangible
assets under the course of construction relating to our new technology platform which are not being amorused as they are not yet available
for use At 31 December 2015, the tota! value relating to intangible assets under the course of construction amounted to £235 3m, compared
with £145 1m at 31 December 2014 We expect that, as these assets become available for use, this will lead to a substantial increase «n the
undertying depreciation and amorusation charge Once in use, these assets will be depreciated over 10 years

Underlying finance costs

Underlying finance costs decreased by £12 Om, or 7%, year-on-year to £151 2m (2014 £163 2m) The decrease reflects the reduction in

borrowings following the PO, whereby the overall debt fell by £833m and, as a result of the refinancing, the average cost of debt fell from an

average of 5 7% 1n 2014 1o 3 1% The Directors expect underlying finance costs to fall substantially In 2016 as we see a full year benefit from !

the change In capital structure 1
1]
)

Share of results of joint venture and associate )

The share of results of joint venture and associate was a loss of £1 2m (2014 loss of £0 3m) and reflects our investments in Pazien Inc and

SPay, Inc

On 15 May 2015, the Group purchased 499 Class A shares in SPay, a referral company specialising in the sport sector, representing a 49 9%
shareholding based on the shares in issue at that date On 18 December, SPay 1ssued further shares to another nvestor, reducing Worldpay's
shareholding to 25%

On 4 June 2015, the Group purchased a further 65,402 shares in Pazien In¢ , an innovative start-up company creating products using
transaction data to enable more intelligent routing, automated aptimisation and reconciliation for our Global eCom merchants Although the
Group holds 51% of shares in Pazien Inc, it does not represent control over the entity as the Board 1s shared equally between the Group and
the founders of the business

Separately disclosed items

Separately disclosed items in the year amounted to a pre-tax net cost of £169 Om (2014 £179 9m}, of which £103 7m (2014 £88 6m) affected
EBITDA, £69 9m (2014 £82 7m) affected depreciation and amortisation and a net gain of £4 6m (2014 cost of £8 6m) affected finance costs
Separately disclosed items are costs or profits that have been recognised in the year which the Directors beheve, due to thewr nature or size,
should be disclosed separately to give 3 more comparable view of the year-on-year underlying financial performance

The separately disclosed items affecting EBITDA comprise platform-related and other costs incurred in the separation from RBS, non- '
capitalisable costs of the IPO, reorgamisation and restructuring costs, and other costs

Platform-related separation costs of £33 3m (2014 £35 1m) are non-capitalised costs associated with the upgrade and rmigration of the
Group’s core systems from RBS They are principally personnel, maintenance and consultancy costs Total costs incurred to date on the
platform programme are £443 8rm {2014 E361 9m), of which £289 4m (2014 £234 8m) has been included within tangible and intangible
assets on the balance sheet, with the remainder charged directly to the income statement

Other costs related to the separation from RBS of £20 1m (2014 £24 1m) principally relate to system implementation and remediation, double
running of property, and the excess costs of intenm staff

1n 2016, we expect a further reduction tn platform-related and other costs incurred in the separation from RBS as the programme nears
completion

The non-capitalisable costs of the IPO in the year amounted to £35 Om (2014 £nil) and reflect the costs of various share awards granted as
part of the IPQ, including the all-employee free share award and additional awards grven to management

Reorganisation and restructunng costs of £6 4m {2014 £18 2m) represent costs associated with a variety of projects to develop and
implement the strategy of establishing Worldpay a5 a stand-alone business Costs in 2015 include the restructuring and further integration of
the Cardsave business in WPUK and the sales force reorganisation in WPUS




Separately disclosed items

Pro forma
Year ended yess ended
31 December 31 December Yepr-or-year
2015 2014 change
£m £m £m
Affecting EBITDA
Separation - platform costs {33.3) {351) 18
Separation - other costs (201) (241) 40
IPO-related costs (35.0) - (350}
Reorganisation and restructunng costs (6 4) {18 2) 118
Cther costs {89} (11 2) 23
Total affecting EBITDA {103.7) (88 6) {151)
Affecting depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation of bustness combination intangibles {67 9) (731) 52
Impairment of platform assets - (56 96
Impaiment of other intangibles (2.0 - {20}
Total affecting depreciation and amortisation {69 9} (827) 128
Affecting finance (costs)/income
Costs associated with refinancing {44 7} - {44 7)
Net revaluation gain on Visa Europe asset and related
CVRs 54.8 - 548
Foreign exchange losses (55 {86) 31
Total affecting finance {costs)/income 4.6 (8 6} 132
Tota! {pre-tax} {169.0) {179 9) 109
Tax credt 08 382 (37 4)
Total {post-tax) {166.2) (141 7) (26 5}

These are partially offset by the release of prowisions for contingent consideration payable on acquisitions no longer required

Other costs of £8 9m {2014 £11 2m)include fees pavable to shareholders incurred prior to the IPQ in relation to the previous ownership
structure and a number of other smaller one-off items

Separately disclosed items affecting depreciation and amortisation amounted to £69 9m (2014 £82 7m} These predominantly relate to the
amortisation of business combination intangibles which 1s a non-cash charge relating to intangible assets recognised on the divestment of the
business from RBS, as well as subsequent strategic business acquisitions in addition, in the year, software development in WPUS of £2 Om was
deemed to be impalred and written-off following the integration of the SecureNet business

Separately disclosed items affecting finance costs in the year were a net gain of £4 6m {2014 cost of £8 6m) and comprise tosts associated
with the refinancing of the Group {£44 7m), a net revaluation gain on fair vatue of the Visa Europe shares and related Contingent Value Rights
(€54 8m), and FX losses resulting from the translation of the Group’s assets and habilities denominated in currencies other than Sterling

(£S5 Sm) The £44 7m of costs associated with the refinancing represent the write-off of previously capitahised finance costs on repayment of
the debt that was in place pnior to the IPO The net revaluation gain on the Visa Europe shares and related Contingent Value Rights 15 explained
in more detall on page 76

We expect most separately disclosed items to be ebminated from the end of 2016, with the exception of the non-cash charge for amortisation
of business combination intangibles, a charge for residual migration activity and the charge for the transitional share award plan, awarded at
PO, which will cease part-way through 2018

Profit/{loss} before tax

The profit before tax for the year was £19 1m (2014 loss of £47 im} The impravement year-on-year reflects strang trading performance,
togethar with a reduction in underlying depreciation and amortisation and underlying finance costs and the net gain in relation to the Visa
Europe shares




Tax

The tax charge on undertying results for the Group increased by £8 6m, or 21%, to 3 charge of £49 7m n the year ended 31 December 2015
{2014 £41 1m), representing both current tax and deferred tax charges The underlying tax charge was drven prinaipally by taxable profits
ansing in the UK and the Netherlands, partly offset by taxable losses in the United States

The charge reflects an effective tax rate on underlying results of 26%, which 1s hugher than the UK headhine rate for the year of 20 25%
primanly due to higher overseas tax rates and non-deductible financing costs

The tax credit of £0 8m (2014 £38 2m) arising on separately disclosed items includes a deferred tax charge of £39 2m arsing on the propased
disposal of the interestin Visa Europe 1n 2016

After including separately disclosed items, the Group's total tax charge increased by £46 Om to £48 9m in the year ended 31 December 2015
{2014 £2 9m), inclusive of the Visa Europe deferred tax hability referred to above

€arnings per share and dvidends

Basic and diluted underlying pro forma earnings per share in the year was & 9p, an increase of 50% on the pro forma prior year earnings per
share Underlying pro forma earnings per share 15 calculated by taking profit/loss before separately disclosed stems, dwvided by the number of
shares in 1ssue at the end of 2015 The year end number of shares has been used as this avoids the distortion caused by the pre-IPO postion
and therefore aids comparability this year and in the following year

On a reported basis, the basic and diluted loss per share for 2015 was 1 8p compared with a loss per share in the prior year of 3 1p

In ine with the guidance given at the time of the 1P0, the Directors are not recommending the payment of a dividend in relation to the year
ended 31 December 2015 The Group's first dividend as a public company is expected to be declared at the 2016 half year results and paid in
November 2016 The Group’s dvidend policy 1s based on a pay-out ratio of 20% to 30% of reported profit after tax per annum, with
approximately one third of any annua! dividend to be pard in raspect of the first half and two thirds in respect of the second half

Cash and liquidity

Cash flow

The net cash inflow from operations in the year increased by £80 1m, or 35%, to £312 1m (2014 £232 Om} The increase reflects
improvements to underlying trading and working capital and lower tax payments, partly offset by increased separately disclosed tems
affecting EBITDA and higher foreign exchange losses The working capital inflow in the year of £29 2m (2014 outflow of £30 Sm}) largely
reflacts an increase in trade payables and accruals as a result of the growth in the underlying business and investment in people 2nd
infrastructure The corresponding growth in trade debtors we would expect to see was partly offset by the impact of reductions in interchange
rates during the year, resulting in lower fevels of customer funding

Expenditure on tangible fixed assets and software in the year was £179 Om {2014 £142 7m) The increase year-on-year reflects investment n
a number of customer propositions to support the growth plans of our operating divisions, and spend to enhance our data security and
stmprove our data analytics capability These have been partially offset by lower investment in platform-related expendrture as we transition
from the "build’ to the ‘test’ phase of this project Total capital expenditure is expected to remain between 16% and 20% of net revenue 1n
2016 and to dechine to appraximately 9% to 10% of net revenue in 2017




Cash flow

Pro forma
Year ended yesr ended
31 December 31 December Year-an-year
s 2014 change
£m £m £m
Undertang EBITDA 4061 3747 314
Separately disclosed items affecting EBITDA {1037} {28 6) {151)
Working caprtal’ 29.2 {(305) 597
Tax paid {8.6} {191) 105
Non-cash tems {10 9} {45) {64)
Net cash inflow from operating activibes 3121 2320 801
Capnal expenditure (179 0) {142 7) {363)
Underlying finance costs paid {100.7} (88 6) {121)
Free cash flow" 32a 07 317
Acquisitions {16 6} {95 4) 828
Underlying movement in borrowings (59 1) 944 {153 5}
Net impact of IPO and refinancing 32.7 - 377
Net cash flow {5.6) (43) {13)

1 Working capnal shown here excludes any movements assoosted with the IPO
2 Free cash flow reprasents the Group's net cash inflow from opersting activities, stter accounting for the Group®s net capital expenditure and undertying finance costs &t excludes sny

working caprtal movements associated wath the IPO

Debt and financing
Asat Asat
31 Dacambar 31 December Year-onvyear
018 2014 change
£m £m £m
Own cash 165.3 1687 {34)
Senior borrowings
Term Facility 1 [247.1) - {247 1)
Term Facility 2 (510 3) - {910 3)
Revohing credit facility (38 4] - (384)
Senior unsecured notes (365 6) - (365 6)
Other - (1,826 1) 18261
{1,561 4) (1,826 1) 2647
Finance leases {29 2) (28 2) {10}
Subordinated borrowings - (450 5) 4505
Loan notes - {118 0) 1180
Net debt (1,425 3) {2,254 1) 8288

Underlying finance costs paid in the year were £100 7m {2014 £88 6m) The increase year-on-year reflects the phasing of interest repayments

As a result of the above movements, free cash flow increased to £32 4m 1n 2015 compared with £0 7mn 2014




Expenditure on acquisittons in the year reflects payments in relation to the Cardsave earnout, settlement of deferred consideration for YesPay,
and ivestments made tn SPay and Pazien

The underlying movement in barrowings of £59 1m outflow {2014 inflow of £94 4m) included the repayment, 1n the first half of 2015, of
£50 Om that had been drawn under the Group’s revolving crednt facility in 2014

The net impact of the IPO and refinancing in the year was an inflow of £37 7m (2014 £mil) and principally reflects the proceeds received on
issue of shares and the infiows from the refinancing, offset by the amounts paid to previous shareholders and the repayment of pre-IPO debt

Debt and financing

On 16 October, as part of the IPO process, a!l existing borrowings were repaid and the Group arranged new barrowing facilities totalling

£1 7bn These new borrowings comprised a £600m three-year term facility (Term Facility 1), 3 £900m five-year term facility (Term Facility 2),
and a £200m revolving credit facility The rates of interest are LIBOR-based plus a margin dependent on leverage The maximum margin for
Term Facility 115 2 00% and for Term Facility 215 2 50%

On 10 November 2015, the Group 1ssued €500m 3 75% semor unsecured notes due 2022, the proceeds of which were used to reduce Term
Facility 1 The issue extended the average term of the Group's debt, diversified its funding sources and fixed the interest rate an this pertion of
debt

Net debt at 31 December 2015 was £1,425 3m {2014 £2,254 1m) The reduction year-on-year reflects the IPO and the resultant refinancing
actvity

Proposed disposal of interest in Visa Europe

On 2 November 2015, we announced the proposed disposal of our approximate 5 3% interast in Visa Europe to Visa Inc The disposal, which is
expected to complete in Q2 2016, 1s a result of Visa In¢ 's agreement to purchase 100% of Visa Europe, subject to the satisfaction of certaln
canditions

Under the terms of the disposal, Worldpay will recewve a mixture of cash and non-cash consideration currently estimated to be worth in
aggregate up to €1 2bn This 1s made up of up-front consideration of approximately €544m of cash and €375m of Series B Preferred Stock In
Visa Inc In addition, if the earnout pays out in full, Worldpay could receive in the region of €283m in earnout condrtional upon achieving
certain critena relating to the incremental net revenue of Visa Europe during the earnout period The up-front consideration will be reduced
by any final settlement of potential labihities relating to ongoing interchange related litigation involving Visa Eurepe Potential losses from
interchange ltigation abilities will be set against the Preferred Stock which can be reduced to absorb those losses A Loss Shanng Agreement
entered nto by Worldpay, along with the ten other largest UK members of Visa Europe, provides a second level of protection to Visa Ing,
capped at the value of the cash consideration received The Group's share of such liabilities anising from the UK interchange related htigation 1s
capped at the Group’s up-front consideration

As set out in our IPO Prospectus dated 13 October 2015, the holders of the contingent value rights ('CVRs') (a separate class of shares in the
Company)} will be entrtled to 50% of the net post-tax proceeds of the disposal in accordance with the terms of the CVRs {subject to the
Company’s right of retention), with Worldpay retaining 10% of the net proceeds Further details of the CVRs are set out in our Prospectus

Following the disposal, Worldpay will continue to be a participant in the Visa payments system (tis anticipated that Worldpay will no longer
have representation on the Board of Visa Europe following completion of the disposal as a rasult of Visa Europe ceasing to be a member-
owned association

As at 30 June 2015 and on IPO completion, the Visa Eurcpe asset was recognised in the Group's batance sheet as a financial asset witha fair
value of £ml In accordance with [AS 33, financial assets should be re-measured at each reporting date In performing the revaluation at 31
December 2015, the offer by Visa Inc to purchase Visa Europe has been taken into account in the subsequent measure of fair value, despite
the fact that there remains some uncertainty around both the likelihood of completion of the deal {which s still subject to ants-trust
clearance}, and the amount of pre-transaction aperational liabilities which would reduce the up-front consideration receved

The CVR liabilities were recognised at £mil fair value on mitial recognition At year end, they were re-measured at amortised cost based on a re-
estimation of future cash flows, with any changes being recognised in the income statement

Based on the above, the fair value of the Visa Eurape asset on the Group’s balance sheet has increased to £195 7m and the corresponding CVR
habilities have been valued at £140 9m A deferred tax lability of £39 2m has also been recognised A net pre-tax revaluation gain of £54 Bm
has been recognised in finance costs as a separately disclosed item




Chairman’s governance letter

*Your Board has made a firm commitment to apply the highest standards of governance *

Sir Michael Rake
Chairman

Governance

Your Board, under my Charrmanship, has made a firm commutment to apply the highest standards of governance across the Group The
appropriate governance practices in place prior to the IPO in October 2015 have been strengthened with the structures and processes
required of a publicly isted company and these will be enhanced during the course of 2016 Our first governance report explains our current
arrangements and areas for further development in 2016

The Board

The appontment of Deanna Oppenheimer on 1 January 2016 further strengthens our Board She s a leading figure in international finance
and, with ker unusual combination of banking, retail, innovation, brand and communication skalls, will be invaluable to Worldpay Her
appointment brings the number of independent Non-Executive Directors to three We recognise that the ratic of Independent Non-Executive
Oirectors on the Board falls short of UK corporate governance and shareholder expectations and we will cantinue to build our new Board In
2016 In furtherance of this objective, we will have regard to our Board Appointments Policy, which provides for diversity across a range of
measures, Inctuding skills, experience, knowtedge and gender in order to meet the needs of cur business

With new Independent Directors jolning the Board, we will provide thorough induction and on-going education programmes in the formof a
series of development and strategy support presentations for the entire Board at the end of each of its meetings This serles, together with our
normal on-going business reviews, will ensure that the Non-Executive Directors build sufficient knowledge to be able to contnbute fully to the
Board’s review and development of strategy

We recognise the benefit of a thorough Board effectiveness review and beheve the time to do this will be around the anniversary of our 1PO,
towards the end of 2016

Risk management and corperate culture

©Our nsk culture 15 centred on nsk awarenass, gpenness, continuous improvement and encouraging the night behaviour to ensure an
appropnate outcome for both the Company and its customers Qur colleagues are required to consider risk in their decision making and take
personal accountability for the risks they take The distillation of a set of everyday working princlples and behaviours into the Worldpay Way
sets the tone from the top, which together with comprehensive development opportunsties to drive our capabilities and speatfic training
programmes to reinforce our legal and regulatory compliance, supports a positive corporate culture

Participation in these training programmes and the output from our annual colleague survey ls regularly reviewed by the Executive Commitiee
and the Board to ensure we rmamtain 3 positive culture across the organisation

Engagement with our shareholders

We place great importance on active engagement with our shareholders and have put in place a programme of meetings to discuss our
strategy and perfarmance In addition, we have also engaged with our major shareholders and a number of governance grganisations in
respect of our performance measures and targets for our bonus and long-term incentive arrangements, which are fully ahgned with our
targets and key performance indicaters for the dellvery of our strategy

we look forward to engaging with you in 2016 and beyond and look forward ta your support at our first annual general meeting on 10 May
2016

Further details of our gavernance and remuneration arrangements are detalled on pages 82 to 112
Sir Michael Rake

Chatrman
8 March 2016




Board of Directors

The Board 1s chaired by Non-Executive Chairman, $ir Michae! Rake In 2ddition to the Chairman, the Board currently includes three Executive
Directors, three Independent Non-Executve Directors and two Non-Executive Directors Each of the Committees of the Board 1s chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director, other than the Nomination Committee, which s chaired by the Chairman

Worldpay appreciates the importance of having a Board of Directors containing the nght balance of skills, experience and diversity The skills
and experience of the current Directors and the value they bring to Worldpay Group 1s descnibed here

Sir Michael Rake

Chairman

Appointment

Appointed as Chairman of the Board with effect from September 2015

Key strengths
Sir Michael brings to the Board extenswe financtal and commercial expertise, as well as significant experience 0 capital markets, technology
and digntal products

Expenence

Sir Michael is currently Chairman of BT Group plc, Mapd Al Futtaim Holdings LLC and International Chamber of Commerce UK and a Director of

McGraw Hill Finance Inc Sir Michael was President of the Confederation of Britssh Industry from 2013 to 2015, a member of the Prime

Minister’s Business Adwisory Group from 2010 to 2015, Non-Executive Director of Barclays plc between 2008 and 2015 {being Deputy '
Chairman from 2012), Chairman of the private equity oversight group the Guidefines Monitoring Commuttee from 2008 to 2013, Chairman of

easylet plc from 2010 to 2013, and the first Charman of the UK Commussion for Employment and Skills from 2007 to 2010 He was alsoa

Oirector of the Financial Reporting Counci! from 2008 to 2011 and Chairman of Business in the Community fram 2004 to 2007 Sir Michael also

had a long and extensive career with KPMG, culminating in his appointment as International Chairman between 2002 and 2007

Chawrman of the Nonunation Committee and member of the Audit Committee

Philip Jansen

Chief Executive Cfficer

Appointment

Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from April 2013

Key strengths
Philip has significant executive management expertise, as well as key strengths in international business transformation, change management
and strategy development

Experience

Philip was Chief Executive Officer of Brakes Group from tuly 2010 and later Chairman between April 2013 and October 2015 He remains a
Senior Advisor to Brakes Group and to Bain Capital Between 2009 and 2013, Philip was a Non-Executive Director of Travis Perkins plc He was
previcusly Group Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer, Europe, South Africa and India for Sodexo Prior to that, he was Chief
Operating Officer of MyTravel plc and Managing Director of Telewest Communications ple, after starting his career at Procter & Gamble

Rick Medlock

Chief Financial Officer

Appointment

Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from Apnl 2015

Key strengths
Rick has extansive expertise and 30 years' expenence in the financiai management of large international technology companies

Experience

Rick 1 2 quatified chartered accountant Prior to joining Worldpay, Rick was Chief Financial Officar of Misys From 2004 to December 2013, Rick
was Chief Financial Offecer of Inmarsat plc and between 1596 and 2004 he served as Chief Financral Officer and Company Secretary of NDS
Group plc The early part of his career was spent in a vanety of roles as Chief Financial Officer of a nurnber of private equity backed technology
companies in the UK and the US

Ron Katifa

Vice Chairman and Executive Directar

Appointmeant

Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from August 2010

Key strengths
Ron has significant executive leadership experience within the payments industry, and has developed key strengths in mergers and
acquisitions and strategy development




Experience

Ron was appointed as Vice Chairman and Executive Directer of Worldpay Group In 2013, and was Chief Executive Officer of the business for
over ten years Under Ron's leadership, Worldpay acquired and successfully integrated a senes of separate businesses from across
ecommerce, sk management and acquiring to form one of the world's leading prowviders of merchant services Prior to this Ron held various
executive roles within RBS and NatWest Ron is also a8 member of the Visa Europe board, QW plc and UK Cards Association Ltd

Martin Scicluna

Senlor Independent Non-Executive Director

Appotntment

Appointed as Senior Independent Director with effect from September 2015

Key strengths
Martin has deep knowledge of auditing and associated regulatory Issues

Expernience

Martin was appointed as $enlor Independent Director in 2015, having joimed the Board as a Non-Executive Director in 2013 He is currently
Chairman of RSA Insurance Group plc and Great Portland Estates pic He served as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit
Commuttee of Lioyds Banking Group from 2008 to 2013 and was a member of the Financial Services Trade and Investment Board from 2013 to
2015 Pnor to this, he was Chairman of Deloitte LLP In the UK for 12 years to May 2007, having been a member of the Deloitte Board from
1990 to 2007 He also has international experience as a member of the Board of Directors of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for mne years
Additionally, he was Audt Partner at Deloitte for 26 years and has experience in serving boards and audit committees of FTSE 100 companies
as Lead Partner

Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Risk, Nomination and Remuneration Committees

John Allan, CBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointment
Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from July 2011

Key strengths
John brings a wealth of executive management expertise In commercial and financial services sectors

Expenence

John is currently Chalrman of Tesco plc, Barratt Developments plc and London First John was Chairman of Dixons Retail from 2009 to 2014 and
later Co-Deputy Chairman and Sentar Independent Director of the enlarged Dixons Carphone unt 2015 He was also previously Chairman of
Care UK Health & Social Care and has been a Non-Executive Director of National Grid ple, the Royal Mail Group plc, the UK Home Office
Supervisory Board, 31 Group plc, PHS Group ple, Wolseley ple, Hamleys plc and Connell pic He was also a member of the supervisory boards of
both Lufthansa AG and Deutsche Postbank and Senior Advisor to Deutsche Bank John has served as an Executive Director at BET pic and was
Chief Financial Otficer and a Board Member of Deutsche Post DHL following its acquisition gf Exel plc in December 2005, where he had been
Chief Executive since September 1994

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit, Nomination and Risk Committees

Deanna Oppenhelmer

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointment

Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from lanuary 2016

Key strengths
Deanna has extensive knowledge and expernience in retad banking and financial services as well as significant leadership skills

Expenience

Deanna Is founder of CameoWorks LLC, a retal] and flnancial services adwisory firm Previously, she served in a number of rales at Barclays plc,
first as Chief Executive of UK Retail and Business Banking and then as Vice Chair of Global Retall Banking Prior to Barclays, Deanna worked
from 1985 to 2005 at Washington Mutual, Inc where she was Marketing Director and, later, President of Consumer Banking, helping
transform the lender from a regional to a national player Deanna currently holds Non-Executive Director roles on the Boards of Tesco plc,
Tesco Bank, NCR Corporation, AXA Group, the Joshua Green Corporation, and Brooks Sports Additionally, she is a senior adwisor to Bain &
Company

Chair of the Risk Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee

James Brockiebank

Non-Executive Director (not independent}

Appointment

Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from November 2010

Key strengths
James has extensive financial services experience, Including investment banking and private equity




Expenence

James joined Advent International in 1997 and has 18 years of private equity expenence James co-heads Advent in Europe and s responsible
for the European business and financial services sector team He 15 also a member of the European Investment Adwisory Commuttees, the
North American Investment Committee and 1s a member of Advent’s global Executive Committee He currently serves on the boards of Nets
(Denmark), ICSPI {Italy) and Advent International plc Pnor to Advent, James worked on international mergers and acquisitions in the London
office of investment bank Baning Brothers and its affiliate Dillon, Read & Co tn New York

Robin Marshall
Non-Executlve Director (not independent)

Appointment
Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from July 2010

Key strengths
Aobin has extensive business and management experience, as well as expenience in strategic decision making

Expenence

Robin joined Bamn Capital in 2009, where he co-leads the European Business and financial Services Sector team Prior to jotning Bain Capital, he
was 3 Partner with 31, where he was Managing Director of 3r's UK business, before founding 3i's US Private Equity Business in New York Prior
1o his career in private equity, he was with Procter & Gambte and McKinsey & Company Robin 15 currently 2 Board member of Nets
{Denmark}, ICBPI {italy) and BPL

Derek Woodward
Group Company Secretary

Appomntment
Appointed to Worldpay Group with effect from January 2016

Key strengths
Derek has a wealth of experience as Company Secretary of large publicly histed mnternational companies across a range of industries

Experience

Derek was appointed Group Company Secretary in January 2016 Prior to this, he spent seven years as Group Company Secretary of Thomas
Cook Group plc, seven years as Head of Secretariat at Centrica plc and three years as Company Secretary of Allied Zurich ple, the UK listed
holding company of the Zurich Financial Services Group Between 1990 and 1998 he was Assistant Secretary of B A T industnes plc




Corporate governance report

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

Thas report sets out how the Company applied the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code {‘the Code’) and the extent to which the
Company comphed with the provistons of the Code in the period from 16 October 2015, being the date the Company's shares were first listed
on the primary market of the London Stock Exchange, to 31 December 2015 Prior to the Company’s shares being listed, the Code did not
apply to the Company and although govermnance standards were high under private equity ownership there were certain areas of the Code,
manly In respect of the year end work of the Audit Committee, the Annual General Meeting and re-election of Directors that the Company did
not comply with Therefore, to ensure this report Is more meaningful, we also set out the progress made in our governance arrangements up
to the date of this report and our intentions for the balance of 2016 As at the date of this report, there were two areas of the Code with which
we did not comply The first of these is the batance of Independent Non-Executive Directors relative to other Directors on the Board {provision
B8 1 of the Code) and the second 15 in respect of the requirement to conduct an evaluation of the Board and its Committees (provision B 6 of
the Code) Steps are being taken to address these areas with the objective of being fully comphant during the course of 2016 Further
explanations around our Intentions are given In the relevant part of this report

The Group’s business model and strategy
The Group’s business mode! and strategy are summarised on pages 24 to 51 of this Report

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board 15 responsible for the tong-term success of the Group and for ensuning that there 1s a framewark of prudent and effective controls,
which enables risk to be assessed and managed The Board sets the Company’s strategic aims, ensures that the necessary financial and human
resources are in place for the Company to meet its object:ves and reviews management performance The Board also sets the Company’s
values and standards and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and others are understood and met

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its approval and has a formal structure of delegated authonity, whereby specified aspects of
management and control of the Group have been delegated to the Board Commuttees, the Executive Directors, the Group Executive
Committee and the operating divislon management teams The Board has agreed the terms of reference far the Audit, Risk, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees and the role and responsibilities documents for the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, all of which can be
found on the Group's corporate website at http //investors worldpay com The powers of the Directors are set out in the Company’s Articles of
Association These are also avadable on the Company’s website

[GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE DIAGRAM]

Matters reserved for the Board
In accordance with its schedule of matters reserved, the Board is specifically responsible for
s Approval of the Group's strategic aims and objectives,
«  Approval of the annual operating and capital expenditure budgets, including all investments in excess of £20m or otherwise as
required under the Board's delegation of authority,
Approval of any material extension of the Group’s activittes into new business or geographic areas,
Oversight of the Group's operattons and review of performance against the Group’s annual budget and its strategic aims and
objectives,
+  Approval of annual and half-year results and any other Group trading or interim statements, the Annual Report and Accounts,
accounting policies and, subject to shareholder approva), the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors,
Approval of the Group's dividend policy and the payment of intenim and the recommendation of final dvidends,
Changes to the Group’s capital structure and the Issue of any securities,
Determiming and monitortng the Group's nsk appetite, systems of internal control, corporate governance structures, practices and
approval authorities,
s Deterrmining the Group’s remuneration policy and the remuneration arrangements of the Executive Directors and other senior
axecutives, monitoring executive performance and succession planming, and
s  Establishing and reviewing the Group’s culture, vatues and standards, and ensuring that the Group’s obligations are understood and
met

The Board has a forward schedule of work to ensure that it meets its responsibiiities during the course of the current financial year
The roles and activities of the Board’s Committees are described on pages 87 to 93

Board activity during the period

At each Board meeting, the Chief Executive Officer presents a comprehensive update on the strategy and trading performance across the
Group and the Chief Financial Officer presents a detasled anatysis of the financial performance, both at Group and operating division level In
view of their critical importance to the business of the Group, the Board reviews progress on the new payments platform and cyber security at
each of its meetings Thisis in addition to the regular review by the Audit Committee of in-depth assurance work in respect of those twa areas
Senior executives below Board level attend relevant parts of Board and Committee meetings in order to make presentations on their areas of
responsibility This gives the Board access to a broader group of executives and helps the Directors make assessments when considening the
Group’s succession plans The Board continually reviews the Group’s strategy at each of its meetings and, in addition, holds one dedicated
strategy meeting each year

[CHART REMOVED]

A number of development and strategy support presentations will be presented to the Board during 2016




Board compaosition

As at 8 March 2016, the Board compnised the Non-Executive Chairman {who was independent on appolntment in September 2015), three
Executive Directors, three Independent Non-Executve Directors and two Non-Executive Directors Brographical details of all Directors can be
found on pages 78 to 81 and on the Group’s corporate wehsite at http //investors worldpay com

The Chairman
Sir Michael Rake was the Charrman throughout the period from the (PO to the date of this Report

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and distinct There are Board-approved Roles and Responsibilities
documents for both positions, which clearly set out in writing their respective responsibilities These documents can be found on the Group's
corporate website at http //investors worldpay com

The Senior Independent Director

Martin Scicluna was the Seror Independent Director throughout the pertod from the IPO to the date of this Report The Sentor Independent
Director is available to shareholders should they have concerns that cannot be resolved through the normal channels involving the Executive
Directors or the Chairman The Board-approved Role and Responsibilities of the Senior Independent Director are set out in wnting and can be
found on the Group’s corporate website at http //investors worldpay com

Board and Committee membership, appointments and diversity

Following the IPO, Advent and Bain continue to be significant shareholders in the Company and are each entitled to appoint one Non-
Executive Director to the Board for as long as they (together with their respective associates as apphicable) are entitled to exercise control,
directly or indirectly, over the exercise of 10% or more of the votes able to be cast on all or substantially all matters at general meetings of the
Company The first such appointees are James Brocklebank in respect of Advent and Robin Marshall in respect of Bain

The Board 1s mindful of the need to also consider the mnterests of the Company’s new Investors Prior to the {PO, the Board appointed Sir
Michael Rake as Non-Executive Chairman and fohn Allan and Martin Scicluna as Independent Non-Executive Directors On 1January 2016,
Deanna Oppenheimer was appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director Excluding the Chairman, the current ratio of
Independent Non-Executive Directors to other Directors s 3 5, which falls short of the Code requirement that, excluding the Chalrman, at least
half of the Board should compnse Independent Non-Executive Directors The Board will continue to review its compasition and intends to
comply fully with the requirements of the Code by the end of the current financial year Until that objective 1s achieved, the Board believes
that its current composition and the composition of its Commuttees will provide the appropriate corporate governance balance in light of the
Interests of Bain, Advent and other shareholders

The composition of the Board’s Commuttees will be further strengthened upon the appointment of each new Independent Non-Executive
Director Deanna Oppenheimer was apponted Chaw of the Risk Commuittee at the same time as her appointment to the Board on 1 January
2016 and was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 29 January 2016 Sir Michael Rake was a member of the
Remuneration Committee in the period between the IPO and 29 January 2016 Sir Michael Rake 15 also a member of the Audit Committee, but
will step down from that Committee at such time as 1s appropniate

The current compositions of the Board's Committees are shown in the relevant Committee sections on pages 87 to 93

The search, selection and appointment process for Non-Executive Directors 15 fully descnibed in the section on the Nomiation Comrmittee an
page 52

When appointing new Independent Non-Executive Directors, the Board will have regard to its Board Appointments Policy, which provides for
diversity across a range of measures, including skills, experience and gender in order to meet the needs of the business The Board
Appointments Pelicy can be found at http //investors worldpay com

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Comparues Act has codified the Directors’ duty to avold a situation in which they have, or can have, an interest that conflicts, or possibly
may conflict, with the interests of the Company A Director will not be in breach of that duty if the relevant matter has been authonsed in
accordance with the Articles of Association by the other Directors

The Board has estabhshed a process to identify and authonse conflicts As part of that process, it has also agreed that the Nominatien
Committee should review the authorsed conflicts every six months or more frequently if a new potential conflict anses for an existing

Director The Normination Committee reviews the interests of candidates prior to making recommendations for the appointment of new
Directors The Nomination Committee and Board applied the above principles and process throughout the period to the date of this report and
confirm that these have operated effectively

Conflrmation of Director independence

At sts March 2016 Board meeting, as part of a thorough review of corporate governance against the Code, the Board considered the
indepandence of the Non-Executive Directors against the critena specified in the Code and determined that John Allan, Martin Scictuna and
Deanna Oppenheimer were independent




In reaching the above deterrination of independence, the Board considered the following
e  That john Altan and Deanna Qppenheimer currently hold the posltions of Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director at
Tesco plc, and
»  The payments made prior to the IPO by AB JV Global § & r | {the then ultimate parent company of the Company) to John Allan and
Martin Scicluna, which were disclosed fully in the IPO Prospectus and in the Remuneration report on page 106 of this Annual Report
and Accounts

The Board agreed that each of John Allan, Deanna Oppenhetmer and Martin Scicluna are independent in character and judgement and the
above matters have not restricted or impaired his or her effectiveness and independence

Re-appointment of Directors

In accordance with the Code and the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors are subyject to election by shareholders The Board has
agreed that the Directors will be subject to annua! election Non-Executive Directors are lnitlally appointed for a three-year term and, subject
1o review by the Nomination Committee and continued annual election by shareholders, can serve up to a maximum of three such terms

Board induction and development
An Induction programme tatlored to meet the needs of individual Directors Is prowvided for each new Director Overall, the atm of the induction
programme Is to introduce new Directors to the Group's business, its operatlons and its governance arrangements

Such inductions typically include meetings with senior management, both at the Group level and within the operating divisions, where they
receive a tharough bnefing on the business and meet with the management teams Indwvidualinduction requirernents are monitored by the
Chairman, with the support of the Group Company Secretary, to ensure that newly appointed Directors gain sufflcient knowledge about the
Group 1o enable them to contribute to the Board’s deliberations as swiftly as possible The induction content and process will evolve as we
butld on the experience of inducting each new Director

In arder to fully support the Directors and to ensure they have a high level of knowledge about the Group's businesses and our strategy, a
senes of development and strategy support presentations will be given to the Board after each of its meetings This programme, in additron to
the normal business reviews, will ensure that atl members of the Board have sufficlent and equal knowledge to be able to contribute futly to
the Board's review and development of strategy

At regular Board meetings and, where appropnate, Committee meetings, the Directors recewve updates and presentations on business
developments In addition to gaiming a better understanding of those businesses, these programmes alsg Increase the exposure of senior
talent to the Board and give the Board presence across the Group

Operation of the Board and Its Committees
Prior to each Board meeting, the Charrman meets with the Independent Non-Executive Directors 1n the absence of the other Non-Executive
Dlrectors and the Executive Directors

The Directors have access to a fully encrypted electronic portal system, which enables them to receive and review Board and Committee
papers quickly and securely using electromic tablets Scheduled Board and Committee meetings are held physically and mast ad-hoc meetings
are held by phone The Group Company Secretary attends all Board meetings

The papers in respect of the Audit, Risk, Nomination and Remuneration Committees are circulated to all the Non-Executive Directors,
regardiess of Committee membershlp Major decisions taken under the Group’s Delegation of Authority are reported to the next
Board meeting

The Group Company Secretary, who was appolnted by the Board, Is responsible for advising and supporting the Chairman, the Board and Its
Committees on corporate governance matters as well as ensuring that there 1s a smooth flow of information to enable effective decislon
making All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group Company Secretary and the Group General Counsel and, through
them, have access to independent professional advice in respect of their duties, at the Company's expense The Group Company Secretary acts
as secretary to the Board and its Committees

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company has granted a qualifying third-party indemnity, to the extent permitted by law, to
each Director and the Group Company Secretary The Company also maintains Directors’ and Officers’ habulity Insurance

Board meetings and attendance

The Board and its Committees have regular scheduled meetings throughout the year and supplerentary meetings are held as and when
necessary The table befow shows the number of scheduled Board and Committee meetings attended by each Director out of the number
convened during the time served by each Director on the Board or refevant Committee during the period Non-attendance at Board and
Committee meetings was due to 1n the case of Rick Medlock, a commitment made pnor to joining the Board, and in the cases of Sir Michael
Rake and James Brocklebank, unavaidable business commutments In each case, the Director gave input to the Chairman of the meeting on the
bustness to be conducted prior to the meeting Each of the Directors has given a firm commitment to being able to give sufficient time to
enable them to fulfil thewr duties, including the attendance of meetings, (in 2016

As well as the scheduled meetings, the Directors attended additional Board and Committee meetings These were maly in respect of the IPO
of the Company and other strategic matters that the Chalrman and Chief Executive Officer decided should be considered by the Board prior
to the next scheduled meeting Oespite these meetings bemng held at relatively shost notice, there was full attendance at each of these
additional meetings




Board evaluation

In view of the short period of time between the IPO and the date of this Report, the Board has not yet conducted an evaluation of its
effectiveness However, the Board recognises the benefit of a thorough Board and Commuttee eveluation process, and believes the ime to do
this will be around the first anniversary of the IPO, towards the end of 2016 The output from that review will be discussed by the Board and
the actions ansing, which will be monitored by the Chairman, will be disclosed in the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts

Separately, the Non-Executive Directors, under the feadershup of the Senior Independent Director and with input from the Executive Directors,
will conduct an evaluation of the Charrman

The Group's performance management system applies to management at all levels The indrvidual performance of the Executive Directors is
reviewed separately by the Chairman and the Remuneration Commitiee Further details of the Executive Directors’ performance measures and
objectives are given in the Remuneratron report on pages 97 and 109

Indnidual Director attendance at scheduled meeungs between the IPC and 3 March 2016

Audrt Nomination  Remuneration
Name Board Comrmittee  Ritk Committee Cormmittes Committee
Sir Michael Rake a/4 23 N/A /2 2/3
Martin Scicluna a/4 3/3 1/1 2/2 33
John Allan 4/4 33 1/1 2/2 33
Deanna Oppenheimer 22 N/A 11 N/A 11
Philip Jansen 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ron Kalifa 414 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Rick Medlock 3/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
James Brocklebank 3/a N/A NfA N/A N/A
Robin Marshall 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A

1 Deanns Oppenheimer jolned the Board on 1 January 2016 and the Remuneration Committes on 29 January 2016




The Board’s Committees
Audit Committee

Committee Chalrman
Martin Scicluna*

Other members
John Allan, CBE Independent Non-Executive Director
Sir Michael Rake® Chairman

Meetings peryear. 4

Meetings also regularly attended by,

Philip Jansen, Chief Executve Officer,

Rick Medlock, Chief Financial Officer,

Ruth Priar, Deputy Chief Financial Officer,
Michelle Valentine, Group Financial Controller,
Tim Leather, Chief Internal Auditor,

Derek Woodward, Group Company Secretary,
KPMG LLP ('KPMG’)

Link to Directors’ biographles pages 78-81
*Martin Sctcluna and Sir Michael Rake are considered by the Board to have recent and relevant financial expenence, as required by the Code

“The Audit Committee’s facus is on the Integrity of our financial statements, the effectiveness of flnancial and Internal controls and the
assurance prowvided by the Internal Audit function as aur third line of defence *

Composition of the Committee

Martin Scicluna, John Allan and Sir Michael Rake were appolnted to the Committee pnor to the IPO The Chalrman of the Company betng 3
member of the Commuttee 1 permitted by the Code {proviston C 3 1) because he was independent on appomtment as Chairman However, Sir
michael Rake intends to step down as a member of the Committee when an additional Independent Non-Executive Director 1s appointed to
the Board and the Comruttee

Role of the Commttee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for overseeing the financial reporting, internal and external audit and controls,
reviewing the scope af the annual audit and non audit work undertaken by external auditors and for making recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment of the Company’s internal and external auditors

In accordance with its terms of reference, the Committee, which reports its indings to the Board, 1s 2authonsed to
e  Monitor the integnty of the financial staterments including annual and half-year results and any Group trading or intenm statements,
including a review of the significant financial reporting judgements contalned In them,
Review the content of the Annua! Report and advise the Board on whether it is farr, balanced and understandable,
Review the Company’s internal financial controls and the Group's internal control and risk management systems,
Rewview and assess the annual Group Internal Audit Plan,
Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function,
Establish and oversee the Company’s relationship with its external audrtor, including the menrtoring of therr independence, and the
approval of the externa) auditors’ remuneration and terms of engagement,
Review and approve the annual external audit plan, and
Assess the effectiveness of the external audit process

. @

The Committee has a forward work programme to ensure that it will meet its responsibiities in the current financial year To enable it to carry
out its duties and responsibilities effectivaly, the Committee relies on information and support from management across the business The full
terms of reference of the Committee are available at http //investors worldpay com or from the Group Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office

Principal activities of the Audlt Committee during the perlod
In the period from the date of the IPO In October 2015 to the date of this report, the Committee reviewed the following

Financial
+  The 2015 full year results (including accounting 1ssues and judgements) and the processes underpinning their preparation,
» (nformation in support of the statements (n relation to going concern, langer-term wiability, fair, balanced and understandable, and
disclosure of information to the auditors




External audit
e The annual audit plan and scope,
*  The auditor's year-end report

Internal audit and cantrols
e  The strengthening and resourcing of the internal audit function®,
s Theinternal auds plan and the outputs from internal audit activity,
¢  The new payments platform assurance report

Governance
s The effectiveness of the external audit process

* Prior to the IPO, the Committee decided to strengthen the Internal Audit function, teading to the appomntment in September 2015 of a highly
expenenced Chief Internal Auditor The new Chief internal Audrtor has the authonty of the Committee and executive management to
restructure and enhance the skills of the Internal Audit function in order to enhance the quality of assurance work provided ta the Group

Integnity of the results announcements

Within its terms of reference, the Committee 1s authonised to momitor the integnty of the annual and half-year results, including a review of
the ssignificant judgements contained 1n them At its meetings prior to the IPO and in December 2015 and January and March 2016, the
Commuttee reviewed a number of papers prepared by the Group Financial Contraller which set aut the criical accounting Judgements apphied
to the half year and full year accounts and other significant accounting matters such as quality of earnungs, going concern, longer- term viability
and confirmation that the Group's accounting policies were appropnate and unchanged It also gave consideration to a number of key
disclosure cansideratians post-IPO and the impact of new accounting developments

At each of the meetings, the Audit Commuittee also reviewed papers prepared by the externat auditor, which included their view on significant
and judgemental reporting and accounting matters The Committee pays particular attention to matters that it considers to be important by
virtue of their impact on the Group results and remuneration of semor management, or the jevel of complexity, Judgement or estimation in
their application in preparation of the Group’s financial statements The sigmificant issues considered by the Audit Committee during the year
are shown opposite

External auditors
On 19 September 2012, KPMG were appointed as the auditors to the Worldpay Group and Michael Harper, a Partner of KPMG, was appointed
Senior Statutory Auditor

A policy 1s tn place which requires all material non-audit work proposed to be carried out by the external auditors to be pre-authorised by the
Chief Finangial Officer and/or the Committee in order to ensure that the provision of non-audit services does not impair the external auditors’
independence or objectivity The policy 1s published on the Group’s corporate website at http //investors worldpay com

An analysis of the fees earned by the Group's auditors for audit and non-audit services 1s disclosed in Note 2e to the financial statements of
the £4 2m total fee payable to KPMG in 2015, £3 2m was paid in respect of the werk they conducted in connection with the Company’s IPO 1n
October 2015 (£0 Sm in respect of the audit of the Group’s histonic information and £2 7m in respect of non-audit services as Reporting
Accountant in connection with the IPO) The auditors were determined to be the appropriate advisors for the Group to engage, given the scale
and complexity of the work involved This work did not represent a threat to KPMG's independence, as it was permissible work under auditor
independence guidelnes, was performed by a ditferent and independent engagement team, did not give nse to financial enteies, did not
result in decisions being made by KPMG on behalf of management, and the fee arrangements were not dependent on the results of the work
KPMG also complied with the independence requirements as set out by the APB Ethical Standards for Reporting Accountants The IPQ-related
audit and non-audit fees payable to KPMG are not expected to recur in 2016

KPMG have confirmed ther independence as auditors of the Company in a letter addressed to the Directors

At its meeting in March 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectivenass of the external audit process This included reviewing
comprehensive papers from both management and the external auditors, which set out the planning and executlon of the conduct of the
audit The Audit Committee also held 2 meeting with the external auditors in the absence of management to discuss further Upon the
recommendation of the Audit Commuttee, KPMG will be proposed for re-election by shareholders at the AGM to be held on 10 May 2016 In
reaching its degision to propose KPMG for re-election, the Audit Commuttee took into account the effectiveness of the external audit process,
and the objectivity and independence and the length of tenure of KPMG as external auditors




Significant Issues considered by the Audit Committee during the year

Significant issue considered by the Commiittee

How the issue was addressed by the Commitiee

Going concern Management reviewed the appropnateness of
preparning the Group financial statements for the half year and full year
on a going concern basis and presented papers to the Commuttee i
August 2015 and March 2016

The Committee considered papers prepared by management and, taking
into account the key assumpteions and nsks and the external audntors’
review of these papers, concluded that management’s recommendation to
prepare accounts on a going concern basis was appropriate

The Group’s accounting policies and application of them Each year, the
Group Accounting Policies Commuttee conducts a review of the Group’s
accounting pohcies to ensure they remain appropnate The findings
from this review were presented to the Audit Committee in

December 2015 as part of the Financia!l Controller update

Having constdered the paper, the Committee agreed with management’s
proposals

Presentation of financial information During the year, management
proposed a number of changes to the presentation of financial
information induding the introduction of ‘net revenue’ (being total
revenue less interchange and scheme fees) on the face of the income
statement

The Committee considered management’s proposals and agreed to adopt
them Net revenue was introduced as it was felt that t enables a simpler
discussion of the relationshup between revenue and profitability following
recent changes in regulation around interchange and scheme fees

Accounting for the IPO, share issues and refinancing The (PO process
gave nise to a number of judgemental and complex accounting issues
which were brought to the attention of the Audit Committee through
papers presented by management These included accounting for the
IPO transaction costs, accounting for the transitional and all-employee
share awards, and net investment hedging considerations

The Committee reviewed the papers prepared by the Group Financial
Controller in which these issues were raised and after due discussion agreed
with management’s approach

Valuation of Visa Europe membership shares and related CVR liabiliies
As at 30 June 2015 and ¢n IPO completion, the Visa Europe asset was
recogmised in the Group's balance sheet as a FVTPL financial asset with
a fair value of Enil The CVR habiliies were recognised at £nil farr value
on initial recognition Followrng the announcement in November 2015
of Visa Inc ‘s intention to purchase Visa Europe, the financial assets and
related habilittes were revalued to fair value through the income
statement Management prepared and presented several papers to the
Commuttee which discussed the intial recognition of the Visa Europe
asset and related CVR habilibes, and the subsequent revaluation Audit
procedures performed by KPMG and reported to the Commuttee
included an assessment of the facts and circumstances and rights and
obligations attached to the Visa Eurcpe asset and CVR labilities, a
review of the key input assumptions within the valuation model, and a
review of the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in respect of the far
value hierarchy and sensitvities

The Commirtee considered the papers prepared by management covenng
the inrtiz! recognition and subsequent revaluation Following detalled
discussions with management 2nd wath the externa! auditor who also
provided critcal challenge and assessment of the key accounting
Judgements, the Comnuttee endorsed management’s proposals

Separately disclosed items The Group has an estabhshed policy of
separately disclosing items that it believes, due to their size or nature,
are not the result of normal operating perfformance and should be
disclosed separately to allow a more comparable view of underlying
trading performance

The Cormmuttee considered management’s presentation of separately
disclosed rtems, in particular temns relating to the revaluation of the Visa
Europe asset and related CVR liabiliies, and the costs associated with the
IPO and refinancing Having considered the matter, the Committee agreed
to adopt management’s proposed presentation

Accuracy, cut-off and classification of revenue and settlement balances
The processing of payments, from which the Group generates the vast
majority of its revenues, 1s dependent on highly complex IT systems
with a number of diffarent bases for calculating revenue and for
settling funds Audit procedures performed by KPMG and reported to
the Commuttee included testing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of applicable controls, performing
reconciliations of cash receved to revenue recognised in the year, and
obtaining third-party venfication of settlement amounts Where
applcable, IT audit experts were also used throughout the audit
process

The Committee reviewed the strategy document presented by KPMG and
agreed with the assessment of significant risks in relation to the audit The
Commuttee also reviewed the findings of the external auditor at both the
half year and the year end in respect of the nsk

The Committee would review any changes in accounting policy, material
unusual transactions or any other matters brought to their attention by
management in respect of the nsk (there were none dunng the current
year)

The controls and processes implemented by management are consistent

with previous years and are considered to be appropnate by the
Committee

Considenng 3ll of the above, the Commuttee concluded that it was satisfled
with the appropnateness of the reported numbers in the Annual Report

Completeness of trade recervables impalrment prowvisions Provisions

The Committee reviewed the strategy document presented by KPMG and




Significant issue considered by the Comimiitee

are made in respect of impairment of trade recewvables where there 1s
objective evidence that the Group cannot recover the onginal expected
cash flows from the trade recevable due to events since the trade
recevable was inially recognised, or where a merchant defaults or is
expected to defsult on their obhgation to deliver services for which the
Group has already processed the corresponding payment transaction
The provisioning policy 1s reviewed annually by management to ensure
it 1s still appropriate and bad debt provisions are discussed as part of
the monthly management accounts review process Matenal bad debits
are reported to the Audit Committee Audit procedures performed by
KPMG and reported to the Committee included assessment of the
design and operating effectiveness of the key controls within the
Group's merchant onboarding and on-going monitoring processes,
consideration of cash collection from merchants subsequent to the
year-end, and a critical assessment of the output of the Group’s
internal monitoning and review processes

How the issue was addressed by the Commitiee

agreed with the assessment of significant nsks (n relation to the audit The
Committee also reviewed the findings of the external auditor at both the
half year and the year end i respect of the nsk

The Committee would review any changes in accounting policy, matenal
unusual transactions or any other matters brought to their attention by
management in respect of the nsk {there were none dunng the current
year)

The controls and processes implemented by management are consistent
with previous years and are considered to be appropnate by the
Committee

Considening all of the above, the Commuttee concluded that it was satisfied
with the appropnateness of the reportad numbers in the Annual Report




The Board’s Committees
Risk Committee

Committee Chair:
Deanna Qppenheimer

Other members:
Martin Scicluna, Semior Independent Non-Executive Director
John Allan, C8E Independent Non-Executive Director

Meetings per year 4

Meetings also regularly attended by:

Philp Jansen, Chief Executive Officer,

Rick Medlack, Chief Financial Officer,

Ron Kalifa, Deputy Chairman and Executive Director,

lan Whyte, Chref Risk Officer,

Mark Edwards, Group General Counsel, Tim Minall, Group Compliance Director, Alan Osborne, Chief Information Security Officer,
Derek Woodward, Group Company Secretary

Link to Dwectors’ biographies pages 78-81

“With the support of the Group Governance and Control Committee, the Risk Committee will focus on the Enterprise fusk Framework,
existing and emerging nsks on a thematsc basis, Including reputattonal and geographlc risk.”

Composition of the Committee
John Allan and Martin Scicluna were appointed prior to the IPO Deanna Oppenheimer was appointed to the Committee as Chair on 1 January
2016

Role of the Committee
The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibiity to articulate the Board's risk appetite to managemeant and to review the Group’s
enterpnise risk management framework, key nisks and emerging risks that may affect the long-term success of the Group

The full terms of reference of the Committee are avallable at http //investors worldpay com or from the Group Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office

Principal activities of the Risk Committee during the perlod

At its meetings during the period, the Committee discharged its responsibilities as hsted above and n particular

Reviewed the enterprise nsk management framework,

Reviewed risk governance and the risk work plan for the year, ensuring it is fit for purpose and adequately resourced,

Reviewed the principal risks on a specific and thematic basis, and

Developed the approach to its wark programme for the year ahead, including the division of work between the Risk Comrmuttee and
the Audit Committee

Risk appetite and approach to nsk management

The Board’s risk appetite and the Group's approach to nsk management are more fully described in the Principal nisks and uncertainties
section on pages 55 10 66 Such 2 system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the nisk of failure to achieve business objectves and can
provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss




The Board’s Committees
Nomination Committee

Committee Chairman.
Sir Michae! Rake

Other members:
Martin Scicluna, Senior independent Non-Executive Director
John Altan, CBE Independent Non-Executive Director

Meetings per year: 4

Meetings also regularly attended by
Philip Jansen, Chief Executive Officer, Derek Woodward, Group Company Secretary

Link to Directors’ biographies pages 78-81
“We will further strengthen the Board in 2016."

Composition of the Committee
Sir Michae! Rake, Martin Scicluna and John Allan

Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for reviewing and proposing appointments to the Board and for recommending any
other changes to the composition of the Board or its Committees The principal responsibility of the Committee 1s to make recommendations
to the Board on all new appointments to the Board, having regard for an appropriate balante of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
The Committee ensures that there s clanty in respect of the role description and capabilities required for such appointments The Committee
1s also responsible for reviewing, at least every six months, or more frequently if required, the Directors’ potential conflicts of interest and for
making recommendations to the Board in respect of authonsing such matters

The full terms of reference of the Committee are avarlable at www mvestors worldpay com ar from the Group Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office

Principal actrvities of the Nomination Committee dunng the pertod
At its meetings during the perted, the Committee discharged its responsibilities as listed above and in particular
»  (Conducted a thorough process and made recommendations to the Board to appoint an additional Non-Executive Director to
strengthen the Board,
»  Considered the re-appointment of the Directors before making a recommendation to the Board regarding their re-election at the
2016 AGM, and
*  Considered the Directors’ potential conflicts of interests

Board Appointments Palicy

Appointments to the Board are made on merit, against abjective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board This
process s led by the Committee which, after evaluating the balance of skills, experience and knowledge of each Director, makes
recommendations to the Board The Board Appointments Policy recognises the benefits of diversity, including gender diversity and reinforces
the Board’s principle that appointments are made on merit, in hne with its current and future requirements, and reflect the UK hsting and
internationzl activity of the Group The appointments made prior to the 1PO and up to the date of this report have been in hine with that pohicy

The Board endorses the aims aof the Davies’ report entitled "Women on Boards' A copy of the Group’s Board Appointments Policy can be found
on our website at http //investors worldpay com

Non-Executive appointments

International search and selection firms Spencer Stuart and the 2ygos Partnership have been used by the Chairman to identify a range of
surtable candidates for review by the Nomination Committee As a result of this process, Deanna Oppenheimer was appointed to the Board on
1 January 2016 The Chairman and the Committee will continue their work in 2016 to maintain a strong Board

Spencer Stuart and The Zygos Partnership also conduct executive search assignments for the Group from time to time




The Board's Committees
Remuneration Committee

Committee Chairman:
John Allan, CBE

Other members
Deanna Oppenheimer, Independent Non-Executive Director
Martin Scicluna, Sentor Independent Nan-Executive Director

Meetings per year 4

Meetings also regularly attended by
Philip Jansen®, Chief Executive Officer, Andy Doyle®, Chief HR Officer, Martyn Fisher, Reward Director, Deloitte LLP {‘'Deloitte’}

Link to Directors’ blographles pages 78-81
*Neither attends in respect of matters relating to therr own remuneration
*Our remuneration philosophy and framework have a strong emphasls on pay for performance and are fully aligned with our strategy.”

Composition of the Committee

The members of the Commuttee are Independent Non-Executive Directors Deanna Oppenheimer was appointed as a member of the
Commuttee on 29 January 2016 Sir Michael Rake was a member of the Committee from the date of the IPO until 29 January 2016 (the
Chairman’s membership of the Remuneration Committee was permitted under the Code as he was independent on appointment as Chairman
{prowvision D 3 1})

Principal activities of the Remuneration Committee duning the period

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for reviewing and proposing the appropriate remuneration frarmework which can
attract, retain and motivate key management, whilst ensunng full comphiance with best practice expected in companies within the FTSE 100
group The Group’s Remuneration Policy and a repart detailing the composition, responsibiities and work carried out by the Remuneration
Commuttee during the period, including an explanation of how It applies the Principles of the Code in respect of Executive Directors’
remuneration, is included withun the Remuneration repart an pages 57 to 109




Management Committees

Group Executive Committee

The Chief Executive Officer leads the Group Executive Committee, which compnises the most senior business leaders and function heads 1tis
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group and meets manthly to focus on a range of 1ssues in relation to the strategic and
operational development and performance of the businesses The biographical detals of the members of the Group Executive Commuttee are
disclosed on pages 14 and 15

Operating division management teams

The Group's operating divistons {Global eCom, WPUK and WPUS) are managed by their respective Managing Directors and dedicated
management teams Management team meetings are held monthly to review strategic, operational and financial performance These
meetings are attended by members of the Executive Committee to ensure sufficient oversight and co-ordination on cross-Group
developments

Disclosure Commuttee

The Disclosure Committee 1s responsible for implementing and monitoring systems and controls in respect of the management of inside
information and the disclosure of such information to the market in accordance with the Company’s obligations under the UK Lisuing
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules The Committee meets to consider the Group’s disclosure obligations and to review all results
announcements following certification from individual executives from across the Group The Commuttee compnses the Chief Executive
Officer, who 1s the Chairman, the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Genegral Counsel, the Group Financial Controller, the Investor Relations
Oirector and the Group Company Secretary

Group Governance and Control Comrmittee

The Group has established this Committee to provide executive management with a forum to review risk on an enterprise wide basts and
provides and escalation point for operating division nsks The Commuttee also reviews the activities of the Group's assurance functions and
operational nsk profile and approves the annuat Compliance Plan for review by the Risk Committee The membership of this Committee
includes executive management, the Chief Risk Officer, the Chief Internal Auditor, the Chief Information Security Officer, the Group
Compliance Director and the Group Company Secretary

Culture and the Worldpay Way

The distdlation of a set of everyday working principles and behaviours into the Worldpay Way sets the tone from the top and supports a
positive corporate culture The Worldpay Way, which was developed and launched in 2015, 1s based on three core elements "Work Smart, Be
Spinited and Be Supportive' During 2015 the implementation of the Worldpay Way was supported through our leadership teams, backed by
mternal communications and using various traming programmes to ensure it became embedded throughout the Group In addition to our core
management and technical training, specific traintng programmes are in place to support our legal and regulatory compliance in areas such as
anti-bribery and corruption, anti-money laundering, competition law, data protection and information security in 2015, the Group also
launched its own Masters Programme qualification in partnership with Middlesex Universsty

Participation in these training programmes, comphiance with therr requirements and the output from our annual colleague survey 15 regularly
reviewed by the Executive Camrmittee and the Board to ensure we maintain a positive culture aceoss the organisation

Whistleblowing

The Worldpay Way also includes full details of the Group’s Whistleblowing helpline, which allows employees 1o raise matters In confidence,
should they not wish to raise them with their ine manager or a member of the Executive Committee All matters raised through the helpline
are Investigated thoroughly and regardless of the outcome, reported to the Risk Committee

Risk management and internal control
A nisk aware culture 1s embedded throughout the organisation with every single employee responsible for the management of risk

The Group operates a 'three hines of defence’ mode), which clearly identifies accountahilities and responsibilities as follows

1 Business line management has primary responsibility for the management of sk,

2 Risk and compliance functions assist management in developing their approach to fulfil their responsibilittes, and

3 The Internal Audit function checks that the risk management process and nsk management framework are effective and efhcient

Prior to the IPO, the Board carrled out an enterprise-wide assessment of the principal risks of the business Further details of our risk
management system and the principal risks of the Group and how they are being managed and mitigated are included in the Principal rlsks and
uncertainties section on page 55

The Audit Committee oversees the activity of the Group Internal Audit ('GIA") function The role of GIA 15 to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management, contro! and governance processes As mentioned on page 88, the Audit Committee supported the appointment of a
high-calibre Chief Internal Auditor with the remit of strengthening and enhancing the skills within the function in order to enhance the quality
of assurance work provided to the Group

A nisk-based internal audit plan 1s prepared by GIA on an annual basis The audit plan, which 1s reviewed and approved by the Audit
Commitiee, considers key risks and emerging strategic nisks maintained in the risk reglsters In addition, as part of the annual planning cycle,
GIA consult with Semor Management across the business, consider the results of previous audits (internal and external) and monitor the
implementation status of audit recommendations This activity ensures that the Internal Audit function focuses on the most sigmficant nsk
areas and related key controls




A formal audit report 1s issued for each internal audit undertaken, this includes an overall rating and clear actions to be undertaken to resolve
control 1ssues raised

The resutts of audit actvity are also presented to the Audit Commuttee each quarter This Includes highlighting common issues, themes and
areas of concern A monthly list of Internal coatrol issues s alsa mamntained and reported to the business for action

On a day-to-day basis, the Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Chief Financial Officer There is a clear reporting line to the Audit Committee
Chair and it 1s the role of the Audit Committee to assess the performance of the Chief Internal Auditor and Group Internal Audit function This
is stated in the Audit Committee terms of reference

Review of the effectiveness of the risk management and Internal control systems

During the period, the Board, through the work of the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee, has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the Group's system of nsk management and Internal contro! Prior to the IPO, there was an on-going process for the identification and
evaluation of risk management and internal control processes This has been improved since the IPO and remains in place up to the date of the
financial statements The work conducted by management is complemented, supported and challenged by the controls assurance work carried
out independently by the external auditors, XPMG, and the Group Internal Audit function Regular reports on control Issues are presented to
the Audit Committee by the Chief internal Auditor The Board, In reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal eantral, can confirm that
necessary actions have been or are being taken to remedy any significant failings or weaknesses identified from that review

tnternal control and risk management In relation to the financlal reporting process
The Group has a thorough assurance process in place in respect of the preparation, venfication and agproval of periodic financial reports This
process includes

*  The involvement of highly experienced and professional employees,
Formal sign-affs from appropnate business unit managing diractors and finance directors,
Comprehensive review by key internal Group functions,
A transparent process to ensure full disclasure of information to the external auditors,
Engagement of a professional and experienced firm of external audntors,
Review and chalfenge by executive management, and
Oversight by the Group’s Audit Committee, invalving {among other duties)
-~ Adetailed review of key financial reporting judgements which have been discussed by management,
—  Rewview and, where appropnate, challenge on matters including
~  the conslstency of, and any changes to, significant accounting policies and practices during the year,
- significant adjustments resulting from the external audit,
= the going concern assumption,
- the viability statement, and
~  the Company’s statement on internal control systems

1
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The above process, which 1s reviewed by the Audit Committee, provides comfort to the Board when considening whether the Annual Report
and Accounts are falr, balanced and understandabte

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Directors confirm that they consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for sharehalders to assess the Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy In making this
conflrmation, the Directors toak into account thetr knowledge of the business, which 1s kept up to date with regular reports, updates and
business reviews circulated prior to and discussed at each Board meeting, and supplemented by a vaniety of written reports, verbal updates
and presentations given at Board and Committee meettngs as well as a regular flow of information about the business between meetings The
Directors then took into account the thorough preparation and verfication process in respect of the Annual Report and Accounts, which
included suffictent time for the Directors to review the Annual Report and Accounts and to feed in their comments to management before
approving the document

Disdosure of information to auditors

£ach of the Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirms that so far as he/she Is aware, there s no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and that he/she has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director to make him/her aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information

Golng concermn
The Board’s statement in respect of adopting the going concern basis of accounting is given in Note 1a to the financlal statements and on page
66

Viability
The Board’s statement in respect of the Group's longer-term wiability 1s given on page 66

Shareholder communication and engagement

The Company places considerable importance on communication with its shareholders The Vice Chairman, Chief Executve Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer are closely involved in Investor relations supported by the Investor Relations function, which has primary responsibility
for day-to-day commumication with investors




The Board recogrises the importance of promoting mutual understanding between the Company and its shareholders through a programme
of engagement It 1s intended that in 2016 this will include the maintenance of a regular dialogue between the Board and semor management
and major shareholders During the period leading up to the iPO and to the date of this report, the Chief Executive Officer, Vice Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer conducted a large number of meetings with institutional Investors, and it +s Intended that this dialogue will develop
further in 2016 through a programme of meetings with shareholders and potential shareholders, as well as through presentatrons and
meetings at investor conferences, and day-to-day contact with the Investor Relations function To further support engagement with our
shareholders, we also actively engage with sell-side research analysts who provide their recommendations to the market

The Company makes every effort to ascertain investor perceptions of the Company and regular reports of investor and analyst feedback are
provided to the Board The Investor Relations Director and the Company’s brokers present to the 8oard as required

The Company uses its website and emall as the pnmary means of communication with its shareholders This arrangement provides significant
benefits for shareholders and the Company in terms of timekness of information, reduced environmental impact and cost The Group’s Annual
Report and Accounts 2015 1s avaiable to all shareholders and can be accessed via the Company’s website at www worldpay com Shareholders
may still opt to receve their communications 1n a paper format The Group's intenm results are also pubhshed on the Company's website,
together with other announcements and documents issued to the market, such as trading updates and presentations Enquines from
shareholders may also be addressed to the Group's investor relations function through the contacts provided on the Group’s website

All sharehotders are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting Shareholders are given the opportunity to lodge their votes by way of
proxy and/or to attend such meetings in person where they have the opportunity to ask questions of the Board ncluding the chairs of the
Board Commuttees, vote by way of a poll and meet informally with the Directors to discuss any Issues they may wish to raise

In January 2016, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee conducted a consultation with the Group's major shareholders and
shareholder reprasentative organisations to gauge their views in respect of the Group’s remuneration policy and framework and specifically
the proposed performance measures and targets for the next award under the Long Term Incentive Plan The views expressed by shareholders
were taken into account when finalising executive remuneration arrangements




Remuneration report
*“Qur remuneration philosophy and framework have a strong emphasis on pay for performance and are fully aligned with our strategy.”

John Allan, CBE
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Board 1 am pleased to present our first remuneration report as a histed company for the financial year ending 31 December
2015

The report has been prepared tn three sections
®  This shareholder letter,
s Qur policy report which sets out the Director’s remuneration policy for all Directars of Worldpay Group plc and will be subject te a
binding vote at our 2016 AGM, and
s Our annual report on remuneration which sets out details of how our Directors were paid during the financial year 2015 and how our
policy will be Implemented in the coming year This part of the report 1s subject ta an advisory shareholder vote at our 2016 AGM

Prior to taking on the Charmanship role, | was a member of the relevant pre-IPO Remuneration Commuttee That Commuttee spent a
significant period of time ensuring the remuneration elements would be able to transition into a best practice reward framework expected of
a FTSE 100 company As a result of the extensive work undertaken, | am pleased the policy report outlines the new reward platform that will
be deployed from 2016 and beyond

The Remuneration Committee hopes that you will find the report clear, transparent and informative and that we can rely on your suppart for
our Remuneration Policy and 1ts implementation during the coming year

Business and remuneration context

Worldpay is a leader in global payments, which 1s a complex and dynamic market Our strategy is designed to deliver sustamable, recurring
growth over the medium term by supporting our customers with products and services that enable them to drive their sales, reduce their casts
and their risk

One of the key drivers of the Company’s success and for the future 1s the strong, experlenced and highly capable management team
Therefare, it is important that our remuneration philosophy iIncentivises our sentor executves in a manner which s ahgned to our strategy

Prior to our IPO in October 2015, Worldpay was privately owned and the management team previously had personally invested into the
business As a result of the IPO, the management team continue to own a matenal number of shares {as expressed as a percentage of thewr
base salary) and have agreed to these shares being locked-up for up to three years post-IPO This helps demonstrate their on-going

and personal comnutment to the continued success of our business

Worldpay has a track record of defivenng year-an-year growth in revenue and profitability In turn, this has supported the significant
investment that we have made 1n our engineering and technology capabilities, which supports the growth and development of our new
products for our customers These investments will provide an important growth engine for the future and we anticipate that they will drive
future value for our shareholders

This growth in performance was supported by a remuneration framewaork with a strong emphasis on pay for performance As we look forward
as a publicly owned company, we wntend to continue to apply a remuneration philosophy which 15 simple, focused on delivering excepticnal
performance and which 1s ahgned with shareholders’ interests, whilst managing risk in 3 sustainable way

Our approach to remuneration has, therefore, been to carefully balance what 1s considered to be best practice for remuneration in 3 UK-hsted
enviranment with the need to ensure that the arrangements in place are competitive 1n the labour markets in which we compete for talent

This has resulted in a model where the majonity of the remuneration package 15 performance based and set at a market median level Fixed
pay is set at median levels in compansan to other comparable companies of our size and complexity The annual incentive opportunity has
istorically been paid fully in cash From 2016, the Executive Directors’ bonuses earned will be one-third deferred into shares for a period of
three years

2015 pay structure
Prior to the PO, the remuneration of the Executive Directors was reviewed to ensuze that the arrangements in place were appropniate in the
context of their roles golng forward

A simple remuneratlon structure Is proposed compnising the following elements
*  Fixed pay (base salary, benehts and penston),
s  Short-term annual bonus, and
+  Long Term Incentive Plan




Annual bonus

The annual bonus plan 1s drven by financial measures relevant to the business For 2015 performance the financial measures chosen were
equally weighted between a profit and cash measure We use EBITDA as the main measure of profit 2nd use a proxy measure for cash that
focuses management on the underlying cash generation of the business The details of this measure are shown later in the report

In addstron to these financial measures, the bonus plan enables the Committee to set key indrvidual strategic objectives These measures
provide individuals with a strong line of sight and are aligned to delivering the key strateglc objectives of the business to help deliver long-term
sustainable growth

The 2015 bonus 1s multiplhicative in computation and has been since the Group was privately owned From 2016, the annual bonus for the
Executive Diractors will be structured in an additive manner, with 75% based on financial measures and 25% on key strategic objectives,
as outhned in the Direstors' remuneration policy

Performance Share Plan
The long-term incentive arrangements for the Executive Directors will be entirely performance-based and fully aligned with best practice for
UK-hsted companies The details of the proposed targets are set out in the Remuneration report

In recognition of the size of the awards, the performance targets are set at stretching levels to ensure that management are only rewarded if
significant value s delivered 1o shareholders

Clawback and malus
Iniine with the recent guidance in the UK Corporate Governance Code, all of our share-based tncentive plans include malus and clawback
provisions

Shareholder engagement

We engaged with our top 20 shareholders in January 2016 on our proposed remuneration approach and the Intended performance measures
to be used in our incentive arrangements We value shareholder feedback and are very encouraged by the support and comments we have
receved to date We hope to receive your support for our policy report and gur annual report on remuneration at ous forthcoming AGM

John Allan
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
8 March 2016




Remuneration report:
Directors’ remuneration policy

Purpose and link to strategy  Operation Opportunity Performance measures
Base safary

To prowide a level of fixed ase salanes are reviewed annuslly typically with o0 avoid setting expectations of lrt/a

pay which supports the ffect from 1 Apnil cutive Directors and other

recrustment and retentlon
of Executives of the caltbre

business

to deliver the strategy of the

\When deternuning salary levels the Remunearation
Committee takes account of the following
+  Payand conditions of the wider workforce
¢ Indmidual performance
«  Competitve practice in other FTSE 100
companies and organtsations with whom
Woridpay directly competes for talent

t under the remuneration

lary increases for Executive
wectors will normally be aligned

ncreases may be made above
his level to take account of
ndvidual circumstances, which

ay include
s Increasesto reflect an
individual's

development and
performance in role
For example, where a
new incumbent |s

mployees, nc maximum salary 1s

competitive level of
benefits

competitive benefits, which may include a car
llowance, use of a driver, reimbursed travel
xpenses, private medical and annual health check,
isabllity 2nd Wfe assurance

here appropriate, other benefits may be provided to

ke account of ndildual circumstances, such as but
ot imited to expatnate allowances, relocation
xpense, housing allowance and educatren support

re set at a level which the
emuneration Committee
onsiders to be appropriate
gainst wider employee benefits
s well as competitive practice in
ther FTSE 1060 companies and
rgansations with whom
'orldpay directly competes for
talent

appolinted on a below
market salary
» Increase inthe size or
scope of the role or
responsitilities
Pension
To provide appropriate Executive Directors may receive a cash allowance, ecutive Directors may recerve a [n/a
levels of retirement beneft  kontnbutions into the Worldpay Pension Scheme, a ximum contnbution from the
defined contribution scheme or a combination ompany of 20% of salary per
thereof nnum
Benefits
To provide a market- Executive Directors may receive various market Benefits for Executive Directors  [n/fa

Annual bonus and deferred annual bonus

The role of the annual
bonus Is to incentivise
strong financial
performance and reward
the delivery of the business
strategy on an annual basis

Deferral into shares
provides ahignment with
shareholders

erformance s assessed on an annual basis

argets are set by the Remuneration Committea at the
rt of the financial year At the end of the year, the
mmittee determines the leve! of bonus to be paid
aking into account the extent to which these targets
ave been achieved

e Commuttee has discretion to adjust the formulaic
nus gutcomes both upwards and downwards
including to zero} to ensure alignment of pay with
rformance, e g n the event performance 1§
mpacted by unforeseen circumstances outstde of
anagement control

e annual bonus Is normally delivered two-thirds in
sh and one-third 1s compulsonly deferred into

hares for a penod of at least three years Executives
ay elect to voluntardy defer more than one-third of

The maximum annual bonus
opportunity is 200% of base
kalary per annum

The current mawimum bonus
evels applying to each of the
Executive Directors are included
n the annual remuneration
keport

Bonuses are based on 3
mbinatlon of stretching
anual financlal and non-
nancial/strategic
erformance measures,
ith the majority of the
nus assessed agamnst
inancial measures

he Remuneration
ommittee will determine;
he weighting between
ffferent metncs each

ear according to

usiness prionties

aximum bonus




Purpose and link to stratesy

Cperation
their bonus into shares

Drvidend equivalents will be paid in cash or addional
shares once the deferred shares are released

Opportunity

Performance measures

o pportunity may be
receved

Further detaids, including
the performance
measures set for each
year, are disclosed i the
fannual reporton
ramunaration

Performance Share Plan {'PSP’)

The role of the PSP is to
mcentivise and reward
Executive Directors for
achieving the long-term
performance objectives of
the Company which are
aligned to the strategic
goals

The PSP also acts as a
retention tool

wards under the PSP will normally be made in the
‘arm of nil cost options over shares but may be made
n other forms such as conditional or forfeitable shares
r a payment made (n cash

wards will be calculated based on a percentage of
lary and the market share price at grant in
ccordance with the rules

nor to awards being granted each year the
rformance conditions and targets are set to ensure
hey remain appropnately stretching and aligned to
he strategy of the business

he PSP has a parformance period of at least three
ears and a minimum vesting period of three years
wards will normally be subject to an additional
olding pertod with 50% of the award being recetved
fter four years and the remaining 50% after five
ears

mdend equivalents may be paid in cash or additronal
hares on LTIP awards that vest

e Commuttee has discretion to adjust the formulaic
utcome of the PSP to ensure the outcome takes
ccount of any major changes to the Company (e g as
result of mergers and acquisitions) and 1s a faw
eflection of the parformance of the Company

R00% of base salary per annum
[The current PSP opportunities

Elrectors are mncluded inthe
nnual remuneratlon report

The maximum PSP opportunity 1s

pplying to each of the Executve

Vesting of the PSP 15
bject to contnued
mployment during the
rformance pencd and
he achievement of key
inancial and strategic
rfarmance conditions
hich are aligned to the
mpany’s strategic plan

t least 50% of a PSP

il result i up to 25% of
PSP award vesting No
rt of a PSP award will
est for performance
helow the threshold

Further details, including
he performance targets
ttached to the PSP In
respect of each year, are
disciosed in the annual
report on remuneration

All-employee share plans

Sharesave ('SAYE') — to be launched n 2016

Prowvides all UK employees,
including Executive
Directors, the opportumty
to voluntardy invest in
Company shares and be
aligned with the interests of
shareholders

Similar plans may be
operated for employees in
other countries in which
worldpay operates

LUK employees may be eligible to participate in this
HMRC approved employee shara scheme, which 1
operated in ing with the HMRC requirements

mployees are hmited to saving
maximum in line with the
HMRC lirnits

n/a

Share Incentive Plan {"S1P")

Provide all employees,
mncluding Executive
Directors the opportunity to
receive and invest in
Company shares and be
ahgned with the interests of
shareholders

Ssmilar plans may be
operated for employees in
other countrtes in which
Worldpay operates

LK employees may be eligible to participate in this
HMRC approved employee share scheme

There are no present plans to utilise this plan m 2016

The maximum epportunity for
wards will be set in line with
HMRC himits

nfa

Legacy Plans




Purpose and link 10 strategy  Operation Opportunity Performance measures

Transluan Award Plan

The role of the Transition wards under the Transibion Award Plan were made E33,333 shares were awarded to  |n/a
Award Plan is to provide a n 3 one-off basis upon listing he CEO

:::’:ni:::jgnmen;wgh ecutive Directors are required to hold at least 100% (416,666 shares were awarded to
renolders and act as a f basic salary in Worldpay Group ple shares for 36 the CFO

retention tool dunng the
onths from the Admission Date as well as be subject 416,566 shares were awarded to

initial years of Worldpay as
a quoted company 0 continued employment the Vice Chairman and Executive

vidend equivalents may be paid in cash or additional [Director
hares on awards under the Transitional Award Plan
hat vest

Notes to the policy table

Payments outside policy

The Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office {including exercising any discretions
available to st in connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not In line with the poiicy set out in this report where the
terms of the payment were agreed (1) before the policy came into effect or (2 at a time when the relevant individual was not a Director of the
Company, and n the optnion of the Committee, the payment was not in consideration of the Indvidual becoming a Director of the Company

Clawback and malus

The Comruttee has the discretion to scale back (known as ‘malus’) Deferred Share Awards made under the Annual Bonus Plan, Performance
Share Plan awards and awards under the Transition Award Plan prior to the satisfaction of awards in the event that results are materially
misstated, there is gross misconduct or significant reputational damage

Where Deferred Share Awards made under the Annual Bonus Plan, Performance Share Plan awards or awards under the Transition Award Plan
have vested the Committee have the discretion to "tlawback’ swards up to the fifth anniversary of the grant of the awards in the
clrcumstances described above

Cash bonuses can also be ‘clawed back’ in the circumstances described above up to the third anniversary of payment

Performance measure selection and approach to target setting

Annual bonus

The annual bonus performance measures are selected to provide an appropriate balance between mcentivising Executive Directors to meet
the key financial targets of the business far the year and Incentivising them to achrave specific strategic objectives The particular measures
each year are chosen to ensure focus on the key abjectives aligned with the strategy of the business in each financial year

PSP
(n respect of the PSP, the Committee regularly reviews the performance measures to ensure that thay are aligned with the Company’s strategy
In hght of the long-term strategic plan and with our shareholders’ Interests over the longer term

Targets for both the annual bonus and PSP are reviewed annually against a number of internal and external reference points Targets are set
on a shding scale at [evels the Committee considers to be appropriately stretching for the level of award delivered

Remuneration pohicy for other employees

The remuneration policy for Executive Directors in general 1s more heavily weighted towards vanable pay than for other employees The
majority of employees participate in an annual bonus plan, but PSP awards are only made to the most semior (c 80) indwviduals in the Group
Individuals below this level may receive annual awards of restncted stock which vest after three years

The Company’s approach to annual salary reviews 1s consistent across the Group, with consideration given to the lavel of experience,
responsitulity, imdividual perfarmance and salary levels for comparable rales 1n comparable companies

All UK employees may be eligible to participate in the Company’s SAYE and $IP plans on identical terms and those outside of the UK in
comparable plans where appropriate

Shareholder alignment

The Committee recognises the importance of aligning Executive Directors’ and shareholder interests through executives building up significant
shareholdings in the Company Executive Directors are expected to acquire a significant number of shares over a peniod of five years and retain
these until retirement from the Board of Directors The shareholding requirernent 15 300% of salary for the CEOQ and 200% of salary for all other
Executive Dlrectors Details of the Executive Directors’ current personal shareholdings are provided in the annual report on remuneration on
page 109

Scenario analysis

The charts on the followlng page provide an estimate of the potentia! future reward oppartunities for the Executive Directors, and the
potential spht between the different elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios ‘Mimmum’, ‘Target’ and
‘Maximum’




Non-Executive Director remuneration
The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors do not have service agreaments, but are engaged on the basis of a letter of appointment In line
with the UK Corporate Governance Code (September 2014) guidelines, ali Directors are subject to re-election annually at the AGM

It 15 the policy of the Board of Directors that Non-Executve Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the Company’s bonus, long-term
Incentive or pension schemes

Details of the policy on fees paid to our Non-Executive Directors are set out in the table on the following page
{CHARTS REMOVED]

The scanario analysis charts are based on the following assumptions

Minimum - Base salary as at 31 December 2015 plus pension and fixed allowances

Target — Mimnimum plus Target annual bonus {including deferred element and represents S0% of maximum bonus) plus Threshold LTIP
opportumty (25% of maximum)

Maximum ~ Minimum plus Maximum annual bonus {including deferred element) plus Maximum LTIP opportunity

Non-Executive Director remuneration

Fees e fees paid to Non-Executive Directors are determuned by the Board of Directors, with recommendations
To attract and retain Non-Executrve provided by the Chaman and CEQ The fees of the Chairman are determined by the Remuneration
Directors of the highest calibre with mmittee

broad commercial expenence

relevant to the Company dditional fees are payable for acting as Seruor Independent Non-Executive Qirector and as Chairman of the

udit, Remuneration and Risk Committees Members of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and Risk
mrmttees also recerve an additional fee

ee levels may be reviewed annually Fees are reviewed by taking tnto account external advice on best
ractice and competitve levels, in particular at FTSE 100 companies Time commitment and responsibility are
Iso taken into account when reviewing faes

irman and Non-Executrve fees are paid in cash

Committee reimburses the Chairman and Non-Executive Owectors for reasonable expenses in performing
heir duties and may settle any tax Incurred tn relation to these duties For any Non-Executive Director thats
sed overseas, the Company will meet travel and accommodation expendrture as required to fulfil Non-
Executive duties

e faes paid to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors in respect of the year under review are disclosed
n the annual report on remuneration

regate fees are hmited to £3 Om by the Company’s Articles of Association




Approach to recrultment remuneration

External appointment

when deterrmining the remuneration package for a new Executive Director, the Committee will take into account all relevant factors based on
the circumstances at that time This may include factors such as the calibre of the individual, the junisdiction the candidate was recruited from,
the candidate’s current reward opportunity and the scope of the role to which they are being appointed

Typtcally, the package will be aligned to the Company’s remuneration policy as set out above However, should there be a commercial
rationale for doing so, the Remuneration Committee has the discretion to Include any other remuneratton elements which are not included in
the on-going remuneration policy, subject to the overall hmit on variahle remuneration set out below The Cammittee does not intend to use
this discretion to make non-performance incentive payments and 15 always mindful of the need to pay no more than is necessary

The overal! hrmit of variable remuneration will be as set out in the policy table taking into account the maximum value of the annual bonus and
the maximum awards under the PSP {1 ¢ 500% of satary)

The Committee may make an award In respect of a new appointment to ‘buy out’ Incentive arrangements forferted on leaving a previous
ernployer, 1 e over and above maximum limit on vanable remuneration set out above In doing o, the Committee will consider relevant
factors including any performance conditions attached to these awards, the likeliheod of those conditions baing met and the time over which
they would have vested The intention 1s that the value of any buy-out award would be no higher than the expected value of the forfeited
arrangements and made on a ltke-for-like basis

Internal promotion

In cases of appointing a new Exacutive Director by way of internal promotion, the policy will be consistent with that for external appaintees, as
detaled above Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior ta their promotion to Executive Director level, the Company will
continue to honour these arrangements even in instances where they would not otherwise be consistent with the prevailing Executive Director
remuneration policy at the time of appointment

Non-Executive Directors

In recruiting a new Non-Executive Director, the Remuneration Commuttee will use the policy as set out 1n the table on page 102 A base fee in
line wath the current fee schedule would be payable for membership of the Board of Directors, with additiona! fees payable for acting as Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director, as Chairman of the Audit, Remuneration and Risk Committees, and for being a member of the Audit,
Remuneration, Normination and Risk Committees

Service contracts and exit payment policy

Executive Director service contracts, including arrangements for termination, are carefully considered by the Committee In accordance with
general market practice, each of the Executive Directors has a rolling service contract which s terminable on 12 months’ notice and this
practice will also apply for any new Executive Directors

In such an event, the compensation comrmitments In respect of their contracts could amount to one year's remuneration based on base salary,
benefits in kind and pension rights during the notice period Termination payments may take the form of payments in lieu of notice Payments
would be made on a phased basis and subject to mitigation




Copies of Executive Director service contracts are available to view at the Company’s registered office

if the employment is terminated by the Company, the Remuneration Commuttee retams the discretion to settle any other amounts reasonably
payable to the Executive Director including legal fees incurred in connection with the termination and fees for outplacement services

The Company’s policy on any termination payments 15 to consider the circumstances on a case-by-tase basis, taking into account the relevant
contractual terms :n the executive’s service contract angd the circumstances of the termination

The table on the foliowing page summarises how awards under each incentive plan are typically treated in specific circumstances, with the
final treatment remaining subject to the Committee’s discretion as provided under the rules of the plan

External appointments

With the approval of the Board of Directors in each case, and subject to the overniding requirements of the Company, Executive Directors may
accept one external appointment as a Non-Executive Director of another company and retain the fees paid in this role Details of external
appointments and the associated fees received are included in the annual report on remuneration

Conslideration of conditlons elsewhere in the Company

The Committee does not consult with employees specifically on executive remuneration policy However, the Committee considers pay
practices across the Company and 1s mindful of the salary increases applyig across the rest of the business in relevant markets when
considenng salanes for Executive Directors

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee considers shareholder views recewved during the year and at the Annuat General Meeting each year, as well as guidance from
sharehclder representative bodies more broadly, in shaping remuneration policy This feedback, and any additional feedback recewved from
time to time, will then be considered as part of the Company’s annual review of remuneration It s the Committee’s intention to consult with
major shareholders in advance of making any matenal changes to remuneration arrangements

Awards under each incentive plan

Annual borws

Voluntary resignation or terrmunation  [Not applicable INo bonus to be pawd for the financial year

with ‘cause’

All other circumstances Following the end of the Bonuses will be paid enly to the extent that abjectives set at the beginning of the|
financlal year at the usual lan year have been met Any such bonus will be paid on a pro-rata basis for the
bonus payment date nod employed

Deferred shares

Termmnation for ‘cause’ INot applicable Awards lapse

Any other circumstances At the end of the normal IAwards will vast in full at the end of the deferral penod
vasting perod

PSP

voluntary resignation of termination  |Not applicable [Unvested awards lapse

with ‘cause’

l-health, injury, permanent disability, After the end of the The Committee determines whether and to what extent outstanding awards

or any other reason that the relevant performance vest based on the extent to which performance conditions have been achieved

Commuttee determines in its absofute  |penod nd pro-rated to take nto account the proportion of the performance penod in

discretton mployment

Death AS soon as possible after nvested awards wal fully vest
date of death

Change of control 0n change of control Awards will vest to the extent that any performance conditions have been

katisfied {unless the Committee determines that the performance condibons
should not apply} Awards will also be reduced pro-rata to take inte account the
proportion of the performance period not completed, unless the Committee
decides otherwise

Awards may altematively be exchanged for new equivalent awards in the
Iacquwer, where appropriate

Transitional awards

Voluntary resignation or termination  [Not applicable Unvested awards lapse

with ‘cause’

il-health, injury, permanent disability,  [after the end of the vesting [Awards would vest at the end of the vesting penod, but be reduced to reflect




or any other reason that the
Committee determines in its absolute
discretion

the proportion of the vesting penod in employment

Death IAs soon as possible after nvested awards will fully vest
date of death
Change of control On change of control Awards will vest but be reduced pro-rata to take mto account the proportion of

the vesting penod completed, unless the Committee dectdes otherwise

Awards may alternatively be exchanged for new equrvalent awards in the
Iacqmrer, where appropnate
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Remuneration report:
Annual report on remuneration

The foilowing section provides details of how our remuneration policy was implemented during the year ended 31 December 2015

Remuneraticn Committee membership in 2015
As of 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee was made up of the following three Non-Executive Directors

1 John Allan (Chairman)
2 Martn Scicluna
3 Sir Michae! Rake

Subsequently, on 29 January 2016, Sir Michael Rake stepped down from the Committee and Deanna Oppenheimer was appointed as a
member

The Chairman’s membership of the Remuneration Commuittee was perrmitted under the Code as he was independent on appointment as
Charman (provision D 3 1)

The Committee's purpase 15 to assist the Board of Directors tn fulfilling its oversight responsibility by ensunng that remuneration policy and
practices reward fairly and responsibly, are inked to corporate and indwidual performance, and take account of the generally accepted
principles of good governance

The Committee determines and recommends to the Board
e  The Group's policy on executive remuneration,
e  The annual report on remuneration to be approved by shareholders, and
*  Inrespect of the Chairman, the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members determines
- Terms and cond.tions of employment, including the Executive Directors’ service agreements,
= The level of remuneration {including base salary, benefits, pension, annua! bonus and long-term incentives),
—  Performance measures and targets for annua! bonus and fong-term incentive plans

The Chairman of the Board of Oirectors and the CEO are responsible for evaluating and making recemmendations to the Board of Directors on
the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors Members of the Remuneration Commuttee and any person attending its meetings do not
participate in any ciscussion or decision on their own remuneration

Following the IPO, the Remuneration Commattee held one meeting duning the year This was held on 8 December 2015

Advisers

Delostte LLP assisted the Company on remuneration-related matters in the build-up to the IPO and was formally approved as advisor to the
Remuneration Committee on 8 December 2015 following the listing of the Company Deloitte LLP s a member of the Remuneration
Consultants’ Group and, as such, voluntarly operates under the Code of Conduct in relation to executive remuneratton consulting in the UK
fees paid to Deloitte as advisors to the Remuneration Commuttee from the point of listing to 31 December 2015 amounted to £12,600

Single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors [audited)

Table 1, below sets out a single figure for the total remunération receved by each Executive Director for 2015 from thesr date of appomntment
As the Executive Directors only became Directors of Warldpay Group pic on 3 July 2015, no prior year figures have been shown The values of
each element of remuneration are based on the actual value delvered, where known

Incentive outcomes for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2015 (audited)

Annual bonus in respect of 2015 performance

The payments under the annual bonus for 2015 will be made in cash and relate to the annual bonus plan that was set at the start of the
financial year, prior to the listing of the Company Changes have been made to the anrual bonus plan for 2016 to simplify arrangements and
bring the plan more En line with best practice for a listed company, further details of which are provided on page 99

The CEO had a target bonus opportumity of 100% of base salary and the other Executve Directors a target oppartunity of 80% of salary {with
the exception of the Executive Director and Vice Charman who had an historic arrangement whereby his target was 100% of base salary and
which was amended in-lime with policy on 1 Septernber 2015) If maximum performance is achieved, 2x the target opportunity may be
receved For 2015, the annual bonus was assessed taking into account both financial and personal performance on 2 multiphcative basls
Financial performance was assessed agatnst EBITDA and Cash {E-C-5 (see table 2 footnote)) performance targets, each with a 50% weighting




Tabla 1 Single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)

Name Basesatary  Taxable benefits’ Annua bonus® (41 Other’  Penslon benef’ Total
Philip Jansen £387,882 £15,598 £637,500 nfa £2,000,000 £67,122 £3,108,103
Rick Medlock £250,000 £3,028 £300,000 nfa £1,000,000 £50,000 £1,603,028
Ron Kalifa® £228,032 £6,209 £294,550 nfa £1,000,000 £42,122 £1,570913

1Taoable benefits consist pnmanly of car allowsance, private madical insurante, e asiurgnce and PHI where spplicable

2 Cash payment for performance during the year See Table 3 on page 106 for detads

3 The values reflect the awards the Exequtrve Dirertor's recenved under the Transition Award Pan ["TAP upon1PO which will vest in October 2018 subject to continued emplayment end o
sharehokiing requirement See¢ Table 5 on page 106 for detads

4 Penwion benefits 1 the year comprised of 20% of base salary from 1 September Between 3 Juty and 31 August, the pension aflowance of the CEQ, CFO, Vice Chalrman snd Executive Qurector
were 10%, 20% and 15% respectively

S Ron Kalifs additionally received 8 cash payment of £198,065 plus 157,905 Warldpay Group pic shares In ey of his pre-4PO A class shares held i Ship Luxco Holding & Cy SCA The shares are
{ocked in and may only be sold accordingly- one-third for 12 momths, ane-thied for 24 months, and the fnat third for 36 months

Table 2, opposite provides a summary of the level of performance achieved against each of the financial targets set

Based on the financial multiplier set out in table 2, the annual bonus payments for each Executive Director have been calculated as shown in
table 3, opposite

The parsanal multipliers outlined In table 3 were in consideration of the achievement of key strategic objectives set at the start of the financial
year These focused on the following areas

Successful compleuon of the IPQ

Creauion of Ambition 2020

Sigruficant progress (n our new technology platform

Continuous product development

Increased colleague engagement scores

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited)
Tahle 4, oppostte sets out a single figure for the total remuneration receved by each Non-Executive Director for the year ended 31 December
2015 from their dates of appointment

Scheme Interests awarded in 2015 (audited)

Transitional Award Plan ('TAP')

Upon the PO, Executive Directors and other key executives were made a one-off award of shares under the TAP The objective of these
awards 1s to focus indnaduals on a successful transition from a private to a public company and to retain key Individuals over the next three
years

Awards will vest after a period of three years, subject to continued employment and each Individual holding shares representing 100% of base
salary for the duration of the vesting pertod, as shown in table 5, opposite

Table 2 Summary of the level of performance achieved agalnst each of the financal targets set (audited)

Threshotd Terget Maxmum
Measure Welghting Actual {30%) 1100%) {200%) Multiplier
EBITDA’ 50%  £4050m £4000m  £4050m £413 Om 1009%
E-Cs 50% £1691m  £1641m  £1691im  £1791m 100%
Weighted financial muttiplier 100%

1 A downward sdjustment fram the reported underiying £BITDA of £406 1m was made relstng to the capitaksation of the new technalogy platform reward
2 E-C-S EBITODA ess caprtal expenditure kess certaln separately disclosed tems, which acts as a proxy for cash

Table 3 Annual bonus payments for Executive Directors {audited)

Target bonus opportunity (% Financla) Persone! Actual bons
Executive salary) muRiplier muttiplier (% salary s ot 31 0ec 2015)
Philip Jansen 100% 100% 150% 150%
Rick Mediock 80% 100% 150% 86%'
Ron Kalifa 1009 until 31 August 100% 150%  150% of salary in penod

80% from 1 September 100% 150%  120% of salary n penod

1 Pro-rzted from date of jouning the Group Annual equivalent s 120%.




Table 4 Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Durectors (audited)

Non-Executve Cirector 2015 fees
Sir Michael Rake £141,667
John Allan®? £43,333
Martin Scicluna’ £53,333
Robin Marshalt None
James Brocklebank None

1Jchn Allan additionally recerved & cash payment of £265,663 plus 211,799 Worldpsy Group plc shares in beu of hus pre-4PO A class shares held o Ship Luxeo Holding & Cy SCA The shares are
locked in whereby one-third are svallable In October 2016 and two-thirds in October 2017

2 Also, In cannection with the recrganisation that took place priar to the (PO, John Aflan and Martin Scicluna walved thelr respective entitiements to any imnterest m Contingent Vatue Rights
['CVR') 2 separste ciass of shares in the Company In order to recognise the obbgations end responsibiities assodated with their role #s Independent Non-Executve Duectors, John Allan and
Martin Stiduna received one-off psyments from AB v Global 5.4 r | {the then ultimate parent Cornpany of the Company) of £1 9m and E365,000 respectively At the time they were made, these
Jurtp sum paymients were not referabie to the patenbal value of the CVRs, which did not have afry value for socounting purpeses SO% of the after tax proceeds from these lump sun payments.
were reinvested In ordinary shares, m respect of which they have entered into a 365-day lock-up agreement with the Company and the Underwrters to the (PO

Table 5¢ Scheme Interests awarded in 2015 (audited)

Oate Number of Share Face value Vesting
Executive of gramt  shares swarded peice’ of sward date
fhilip Jansen 16/10/2015 833,333 £240 £2,000,000 16/10/2018
Rick Medlock 16/10/2015 416,666 £240 £1,000,000 16/10/2018
Ron Kalifa 16/10/2015 416,666 £240 £1,000,000 16/10/2018

1The share price on the date of listing { 15 October 2015) was used 10 determine the number of shares awarded

Table 6 Chlef Executive Offlter’s historic pay for 2015

3y 20151031
Remunerat:on element December 2015
CEO single figure of remuneration £3,108,103
Annual bonus award against maximum opportunity 5%
LT award against maxsmum cpportunity n/a

Percantage change in CEQ remuneration
This section 1s not applicable as the Company only Iisted on 16 October 2015 and as such there 15 no prior year cornparator which can be shown

Relative importance of spend on pay
There were no dvidends paid or share buybacks implemented in 2015 For companson, the total employee expendsture 15 £334 5m as set out tn Note
2¢ in the notes to the financial staterments

Exit payments made in the year (audited)
No exit payments were made duning the year

Payments to past Directors {audited}
No payments were made to past Directors in the year

External appointments

Philip Jansen acts as an advisor to Bain Capital, for which he recernved a fee of £75,000 Phitip was also a Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Cucina
Investments (UK) until 20 October 2015 after which he remained a paid adwsor He receved total fees of £19,400 from 3 July 2015 to 31 December
2018

Ron Kalda is a Director of Visa Europe and Quwi pic The fees for Visa Europe are paid directly to Worldpay and are not passed on to Ran Howewer, he
does retain the fees relating to his Qrwa plc appotntment which amounted to $150,000 1n 2015

Review of past performance

Histonical Tota!l Shareholder Return {'TSR') performance

The graph below shows the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 100 Index over the perlod from Adrmission on 16 October 2015 to 31 December 2015
The index was selected on the basls that the Company 1s a member of the FTSE 100 Index

The graph shows the growth in the value of a hypothetica! holding of £200 invested at adrssion to 31 December 2015

[TSR CHART REMOVED)




Histonca! CEQ pay
Table 6, above sets out information regarding the CEO's histonc pay from his date of appomtment on 3 July 2015

Implementation of Executive Director remuneration policy for 2016

Base salary

Base salaries were set at listing takeng into account competitive practice for similar roles in other FTSE 100 companies of a sumular sze The current
salanes of the Executive Directors, effective from 1 September 2015, are set out below

Executive Duector Cuprent base salery
Phllip Jansen £850,000
Rick Mediock £500,000
Ron Kalifa £475,000

The Executve Directors’ base salanes were set in 2015 and will not increase n Apnl 2016 as part of the normal annual pay review The Committee
ntends to review these salanes later this year to ensure they are competitive and reflect the Company's desired market posion

Pension
All Executive Directors recerve a cash allowance of 20% of salary in heu of a pengion contnbution

Annual bonus
For 2016 the CEO will have a mawmurm bonus opportunity of 200% of salary The other Executive Directors wall have a maximum bonus opportunity of
160% of salary 50% of the maximum bonus opportunity will be paid for on-target performance

Two-thirds of any bonus paid will be recewved in cash with the rematning third being deferred Into Worldpay Group pic sharas for a period of three
years

The annual bonus for 2016 will be based on the followtng measures and weightings

Measure Welghting
EBITDA 37 5%
Cash metnc 37 5%
Personal objectives 25%

We Intend to disclose the targets in respect of each financial metnc on a retrospective basis at the same time the performance outcome 1s disclosed in
the remuneration report after the end of each financial year

Cash bonuses may be clawed back up to the third annwersary of payment and any deferred share awards may be subject malus and/or clawback up to
the fifth anniversary of the date of grant, in the event that results are matenally misstated, there Is gross misconduct, or sigmficant reputational
damage

Worldpay LTIP
For 2016 the CEO waill receve an award under the Worldpay LTIP with a maximum opportunity of 200% of salary The maximum apportunity for other
Executive Directors will be 150% of salary

The LTIP award granted in 2016 will be assessed against the following performance measures and targets which will be measured over three financial
years, as shown in table 7, above

EPS and EBITDA have been selected as measures as they are the financlal performance measures which will most closely reward the delvery of
our growth strategy

The strategic measures for the PSP awards to be made In 2016 will reward the growth of our customer numbers in our small and medium segments, as
well as completing the migration of customers onto our new technology platform, as these will be key areas of focus for the business The performance
target ranges have been set at stretching levels taking into account both internal and external forecasts, with maxmum vesting only occurnng for
significant outperformance

To provide further alignment with shareholders over the longer term any awards that vest for the Executive Management team will be subject to an
addiwonal holding penod Half of the shares will be released on the fourth annversary of the date of grant and the remaining half released after five

years

Awards under the PSP may be dawed back up to the fifth anniversary of the date of grant in the event that results are matenally misstated, there Is gross
misconduct, or significant reputational damage




Implementation of Non-Executive Director remuneration policy for 2016
Chairman and Non-Executive Director faes
The fees payable to the Chawman of the Board of Directors and other Non-Executive Directors are outlined in table 8, above

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (audited)
In ine with Worldpay's remuneraton policy, the CEO is required to hold shares in the Company equivalent to 300% of base salary {200% of salary for
other Executive Directors) They have five years over which to reach this shareholding requirement

Table 9, opposite shows the shareholding of each Executive Director, and any relevant connected persons, against their respectve shareholding
requirement as at 31 December 2015

Non-Executive Directors’ shareholding (audited)

Table 10, opposite shows the shareholdings of each Non-Executive Director and their connected persons as at 31 December 2015 No prior year
data s available given IPO otcurred in October 2015

No further shares were acquired by the Non-Executive Directors between 31 Decemnber 2015 and 7 March 2016

Table 7 Performance measures to be used to assess the LTIP award granted In 2016

Threshoid Target Maximum Target
Messure Weighting {25% vesting)’ {100% vestng)®
Cumulative EPS 375% 260p 300p
EBITDA growth 37 5% 8%pa 12%pa
Strategic measures
- Customers Net SME adds 12 5% 30,000 40,000
- New technology platform 12 5% Complete customer Complete customer
mgration by migration by
1January 2018 1July 2017

1 Awards will vest on o straight-ine basss between the Threshold and Maomum Target

Table 8. Chatrman and Non-Executive Director fees

Role Total fee
Chauman’ £425,000
Non-Executive Director basic fee £70,000
Chairman of Audit Committee £30,000
Chairman of Remungration Commattee £30,000
Charrman of Risk Commuttee £30,000
Member of Audit Committee £10,000
Member of Remuneration Committee £10,000
Member of Risk Committee £10,000
Member of Nomination Committee £10,000
Senior Independent Director £30,000

1tnclusive of all Board fees

Note
Rolin Mershad and lames Broddebank ere not entitied to an annual fee

Table 9 Executive Directors’ shareholding at 31 December 2015 (audited)

Unvested Unvested

Shares ownied shares not  shares subject Current  Shareholding

outright or subject o to  shareholding guideline

Executive vested' performance  performence (% salary) % satzry)
Philip Jansen’ 11,262,134 833,333 0 4,071% 300%
Rick Medlock® 5,602,920 416,666 0 3,444% 200%
Ron Kalfa® 7,593,021 416,665 0 4912% 200%

1 Vested shares remaln subject to o time-based [ock-n, whereby one third are svaltable in Octaber 2016, one-third in October 2017 and the final thurd in October 2018
2 The CEOC, CFO and Vice Chalrman snd Executive Director respectively held 823,255,384, 185 and 548,836 CVR3 o Ship Lixea Holding & Cy SCA




Table 10 Non-Executive Directors’ shareholding [audited)

Total rumber of shares
Toral number of shares owned a3 st 31 December

Non-Executive Drector owrred a3 at 16 October 2015 2015
Sir Michael Rake 83,333 83,333
John Allan’ 2,652,125 2,652,125
Martin Scicluna® 495,808 495,808
Robin Marshal! None None
lames Brocklebank None None

1 All vested shares remaln subject to  time-besed lock-n, whereby one-thisd are svallable In October 2016 and two-therds in October 2017, except for 209,792 for John Allan and 40,302 for
Mertin Scickura whuch fully vest i October 2016



Other corporate disclosures

As permitted by legislation, some of the matters normally included in this report have Instead been included in the Strategic report on pages 8
0 76 as the Board considers them to be of strategic importance Specifically, these relate to the Company’s business mode! and strategy,
future business developments and risk management The Corporate governance report on pages 82 to 96 and Remuneration report on pages
97 10 109 are incorporated in this report by reference

Relationship Agreement with the Significant Shareholder

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company entered Into a Relationship Agreement with Ship Global 2& CYS C A (the 'Significant
Shareholder') on 12 October 2015 The principal purpose of the Relationship Agreement is to ensure that the Company 1s capable of carrying
on its business independently of its Significant Shareholder

Advent and Bain, who are associates of the Sigmficant Shareholder and continue to be significant tnvestors in the Company, are each entitled
under the Relationship Agreement to appoint one Non-Executive Director to the Board for as long as Advent and Bain are respectively entitled
to exercise, or te control, directly or Indirectly, 10% or more of the votes at general meetings of the Company The first nominee Directors are
James 8rocklebank in respect of Advent and Robin Marshall in respect of Bain

Under the Relationship Agreement, the Significant Shareholder has undertaken that it shall not (and shall procure that its assoclates shall not)
e  Take any action that would preclude or Inhibit the Company or any member of the Group from operating independently of the

stgnificant Shareholder,

Take any action that wouid prevent the Company from complying with its obligations under the Listing Rules,

Propose any shareholder resolution which s intended to circumvent the Listing Rules,

Conduct any transactions and arrangerents with the Group other than on an arm’s-length basis and on normal commercial terms,

Act in any way which it knows will render the Company unsuitable for continued listing on the London Stock Exchange, and

Vote on any resolution to approve a 'related party transaction' where the Significant Shareholder 1s the refated party

The Company has comphied with and, so far as the Company 1s aware, the Sigruficant Shareholder has comphed with (and has procured
compliance by its associates with) the independence provisions under the Relationship Agreement outlined above

Directors’ appointment, conflicts of interest and powers of Directors

Orrectors’ appointment

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company 1s governed by ts Articles of Association, the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006, and related legislation Directors may be appolnted by the Company by ordinary resalution or by
the Board, on recommendation of the Normuination Committee In addition, the Relatonship Agreement between the Company and the
Campany’s Significant Shareholder {see paragraph 1 above) provides for the latter 1o appoint Non-Executive Directors to the Board A Director
appointed by the Board holds office only until the following Annual General Meeting and 1s then eligible for election by sharehelders The
Company may, In accordance with and subjact to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, by ordinary resolution of which special notice has
been given remove any Director before the expiration of his or her term of office

Further information on the appointments to the Board is set out in the Corporate governance report on pages 82 to 26

The current Directors were appointed to Worldpay Group plc on the date shown against thewr names

Director Agpointment date
Sir Michael Rake 1 September 2015
Phiip Jansen 3 July 2015
Rick Medlock 3July 2015
fion Kalifa 3 July 2015
Martin Scicluna 8 Septeamber 2015
John Allan 8 September 2015
Oeanna Oppenheimer 1January 2016
James Brocklebank 5 November 2013
Robin Marshall S Nocvember 2013

Confiicts of interest
The Board constders and authonses potential or actual conflicts as appropriate Directors with a conflict do not participate in the discussion
or vote on the matter in question

Powers of Directors
Subject to the Company’s Articles of Association, the prevalling legislation and any directicns given by special resolution, the business and
affalrs of the Company will be managed by the Directors




Other statutory disclosures

Oividends

The Group's dividend pollcy is set out on page 74 in the Financial review A dwidend of £1 5m was paid (n the year to the Group’s former
parent company prior to the IPO

Greenhouse gas emissions
The disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions required by law are included in the Strategic report on page 33

Employees
Disclosures relating to the Group's employees are included in the Strategic report on pages 28 to 30

Research and development
Disclosures in relation to the Group's research and development are included in the Strategic report on pages 30 to 32

Donations
No polittcal donations were made and no political expenditure was incurred during the year

Details of the Group’s charitable activities are set out in the Strategic report on page 33

Share capital and related matters

Share capital

The structure of the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December 2015 and information about the Issue of shares during 2015 are set
out 1n Note 5f to the financial statements The Company has two classes of shares Ordinary Shares and CVR non-voting redeemable shares

Shareholders’ rights

The rights attaching to the Ordinary Shares are governed by the Company’s Articles of Association and prevailing legislation There are no
specific restrictions on the size of a holding Subject to applicable law and the Anticles of Association, holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to
recewve all shareholder documents, including notice of any general meeting, attend, speak and exercise voting nghts at general meetings,
either In person or by proxy, and participate in any distribution of income or capital

Restrictions on voting

There are no speaific restrictions on the shareholder’s ability to exercise their voting rights, save in situatlons where the Company 15 legally
entitled to impose such restrictions (usually whera amounts remaln unpaid on the shares after request, or the shareholder s otherwise in
default of an obligation to the Company) Currently, all issued Ordinary Shares are fully patd

Shares held by the Company's employment benefit trust

The Company’s offshore employee benefit trust {'EBT') 1s used to purchase Worldpay Group shares for the benefit of employees, including
satisfying outstanding awards made under its employea share plans In respect of all shares held in the EBT, the trustee has warved its right to
receive dividends and will not exercise voting nights Further detalls regarding the EBT are contained i Note 1a and Sh to the Financial
statements

Restrictions on the transfer of Ordinary Shares

From admission of the Company’'s securities on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange, Ship Global 2 & CY SC A (the 'Significant
Shareholder') entered into a lock-up period of 180 days and the Company’'s Directors entered into a lock-up penod of 365 days During the
lock-up pertods, the Significant Shareholder and the Directors agree not to dispose of any securities held in the Company Certain of the
underwniting banks may, however, waive the restrictions in respect of the lock-up penods before they expire

The transfer of Ordinary Shares 1s goveraed by the general provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and prevailing tegislation There
are no restrictions on the transfer of the Ordinary Shares other than {)) as set out In the lock-up arrangements descnibed In the preceding
paragraph, {u) as set out in the Articles of Association, (i) certain restrictions which may from time to time be imposed by taws and regulations
{for example, insider trading laws), and {iv} pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty whereby certain Directors, officers
and employees of the Company require approval to deal in the Ordinary Shares in accordance with the Company's share dealing rules

Notifiable interests in share capital
At 31 December 2015, the intarests in voting rights over the issued share capital of the Company had been notified, as shown in the table
below

As 81 31 December 2015
Number of Yinterestin
Shareholder shares shares
Ship Global 2 & Cy
SCa 839,481,879 41597
BlackRock, Inc 107,115,455 535

On 1 March 2016, the Company recewed notice that BlackRock, Inc had increased its holding to 129,183,963 shares representing 6 45% of the
Company's total voting nghts




At 7 March 2015, the Company had not recerved any further disclosures of major holdings of voting nights, pursuant to the requirements of
Rule § of the Financial Conduct Authonty Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules

No Directors and their connected persons have an interest In 3% or more of the voting nghts of the Company as at 7 March 2016

Amendment of Articles of Association
The Company’s Articles of Association may be amended by special resolution of shareholders The Company’s Articles of Association adopted
by shareholders on 12 Cctober 2015 are avaitable on the Group’s website

Provisions of change of control

The semor facilities agreement entered Into by the Company and various lenders on 4 September 2015 ta refinance exising borrowings as part
of the IPO {comprising the Term Facility 1, Term Facility 2 and the revolving credst facility} provides for the repayment of all sums utllised
together with iaterest on 30 days notice i the event of (1) any sale of substantially all of the businesses or assets of the Company, or {u) if any
person or group of persons acting In concert acquire more than 50% of the ssued voting share capial of the Company In addition, the semor
unsecured notes 1ssued by Worldpay Finance plc on 10 November 2015 and guaranteed by the Company, contain a repurchase prowision at
1019% of the value of the notes plus interest accrued but unpaid that may be exercised by holders of the notes on the same events as well as
an certain forms of merger of the Company




Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and Accounts and the Group and parent Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Company financla! statements for each financial year Under that law they
are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected
to prepare the parent Company financlal statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of thei profit or loss for that perniod tn preparing each of the Group and parent
Company financial statements, the Directors are required to
s Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
e  For the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
=  For the parent Company financial statements, state whether apphicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
maternial departures disclosed and explained n the parent Company financial statements, and
»  Prepare the financlal statements on the going concern basis unless it is Inappropriate to presume that the Group and the parent
Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain the parent Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure that
its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic report, Directors’ report, Directors’
Remuneratlon report and Corporate governance statement that complies with that law and those reguiations

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the corporate and financtal information included on the Company’s
website Legisiation in the UK governing the preparation and disserination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
Junsdictions

Responsibllity stotement of the Directors In respect of the annual financial report
We confirm that 1o the best of our knowledge
e  The financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, grve a true and fair view of the
assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakmgs included in the consolidation taken
as a whole, and
e The Strategic report and the Directors’ report include a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakings Included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a descnption of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face

Wae consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, Is farr, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and performance, business model and strategy

The Strategic report and the Directors’ report comprising pages & to 112 have been approved and are signed by order of the Board by

Derek Woodward
Group Company Secretary
8 March 2016

Registered office

The Walbrook Building
25 Walbrook

Londen

ECAN 8AF

Registered number
08762327




Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Worldpay Group plc

Opinions and conctusions arlsing from our audit

1 Our opinion on the finanaal statements Is unmoddfied
We have audited the financial statements of Wordpay Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2015 set out on pages 118 to 166 tn our opiion

s The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015
and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended,

+  The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financia| Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union,

»  The parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Fromework, and

s The financial statements have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

2 Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
In arrving at our audit apinon above on the finanaial statements the risks of matenal misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit were as
follows

Acturacy, cut-off and classification of transaction-based revenue and settiement batances, Ravenue {£3,963 Om), Merchant float (£656.4m),
Scheme debtors (£534 5m), Merchant creditors (£1,230 9m)
Refer to page 90 (Audr Commuttee staterment), pages 127 and 143 {accounting policy) and pages 129 and 145 [financial disclosure)

The nisk
The recognition of transaction-based revenue and settlement balances ansing in the payment processing cycle may be misstated or not presentedin
the correct financial penod Furthermore, the settlement balances may be inappropnately classified within the balance sheet

The processing of payments, from which the Group generates the vast majonity of its revenues, 15 dependent on highly complex IT systems with a
number of different bases for calculating revenue and for setthng funds There were in excess of 13 billion transactuons processed in the year with total
gross transaction value in excess of £400bn, al! requinng a correct IT outcome In addibion, the appropriate recognition of revenue and settlerment
balances s dependent on core finance processes and contvols accurately reperting on and reconciling these transactions

There 1s a nsk that a system may not be configured correctly from the outset such that revenues and settlement amounts are calculated incorrectly,
that the output from the aperational systems does not correctly flow through to the financial information systems, and that unauthonsed changes
may be made to any of these systems, which may result in the misstatement of revenue and settlement balances

The output from these operational IT systems 1s used in the reconciliation of settlement funds The correct classfication of amounts within the balance
sheet 1s dependent upon achieving appropnate cut-off which accurately reflects the status of allin progress transactions at year-end H

Our response

Our audit procedures vaned by business unit and therefore we have spixt our response into two sections Whilst the nisk 1s consistent across af
business units, the nature of systems, processes and controls vary between the business in the UK and in the US and therefore different audit
procedures are used in each case Our audrt procedures included, amongst others, the use of IT audit experts throughout the audit process

Wae tested general {T controls related to access to programs and data, program change and development and computer operations In order to addrass
the nisk of unauthonsed changes being made to the operation of IT application controls

We cntically assessed the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of IT application controls and tested that the systems are configured
appropriately We tested controls around customer set up and changes to master data that are designed to ensure the appropriate rates are assigned
to each merchant i the system based on signed contract terms We aiso tested the manual controls over the reconcliation of settlement accounts to
scheme, merchant and internally generated reports

e  WPUK and Global eCom Data was extracted from the systems and revenue was recalculated for a sample of merchants based on
transaction data and contracted rates to test the completeness, existence and accuracy of revenue Further analytical procedures were
performed over the entwe merchant population, using transaction data and contracted rates Controls testing was performed to assess
completeness and accuracy of the key inputs used in thase procedures

We agreed scheme debtor, merchant creditor and merchant float amounts to third-party confirmations and critically assessed the year-end
cut-off, paying particular attention to the classification batween settdement funds and own cash an the balance sheet based upon the
undertying legal and commercial nghts to funds )

e WPUS A sample of revenue was tested through examination of merchant cash receipts, confirmations and inspection of transaction detail
In conjunction with this, a detailed trend analysls of revenue by month was performed to identify one-off or unusual transactions and




trends

Settlement balances were agreed to external data For example, the scheme debtors balance was agreed to the network remittance report
and to subsequent receipt per the bank statement, the net settlement recewables and payables per the year-end settiement reconciliation
were agreed to subsequent cash receipts or payments, including examination of a sample of payments to assess whether they had been
properly included or excluded from the balance sheet, and the merchant credtor balance was agreed to actual bank settlement activity
after the year-end

Other key substantive procedures over settlement balances included selecting a sample of payments on the first day subsequent to the
year-end, for which we obtained remittances in order to assess whether they were properly included or excluded from the reported hability,
and winspecting contracts and settlement actavity for a sample of the largest merchants in order to assess whether the transactions were
processed and recorded in the correct penod These procedures provided evidence i respect of the classification between settlement funds
and own cash on the balance sheet

Financial statement disclosures We also assessed whether the Group's disctosures in respect of revenue recognition and settlfement
accounts provided sufficient detasl for users to understand the nature of settlement transactions

Valuation of Visa Europe membership shares ('VE shares’} {£195 7m) and related Contingent Value Rights (‘CVRs') (£140 9m)
Refer to page 89 {Audit Committee statement), pages 154 and 155 {accounting policy and financial disclosure)

The nsk

VE shares and CVRs are financial instruments {VE shares being a financial asset and CVRs being a financial hability for the Group) The carrying value of
these financial instruments 1s dependent upon the classificavion of those financial instruments on initia! recognition, and subsequently upon the latest
available information and the Directors’ judgements at each reporting date The CVRs are a financial abilrty that ts recogrised initially at fair value, and
subsequently at amortised cost, with any changes being recorded in the Consolidated income Statement The VE shares are a finanoial asset and the
Directors have designated them as at fair value through profit or loss, therefore the VE shares will be measured at fair value at each reporung penod
with any changes being recorded in the Consolidated income statement

VE shares There 15 no current actrve market for the shares and therefore these instruments fall within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
which requires significant judgement in determining fair valge The Directors are required to construct a valuation model that considers
the potential cash flows for a range of possible outcomes Due to the potentially large range of outcomes in value terms, there 15 a high
level of judgement required and therefore there 1s a nsk of matenal misstatement in the valuation of this financial asset

CVRs The measurement of the CVRs at amortised cost requires the Directors to estimate the future cash flows related to the instrument
Similar to the VE shares above, there is a large range of potential outcomes in value terms, and therefore there 15 a risk of matenal
misstatement in the carmang value of this financial iability

Qur response

VE shares Our audit procedures included, amongst others, an assessment of the facts and circumstances and rights and obligations attached
to the instrument against the accounting literature, and consideration of a range of possible alternatives with respect to classification and
valuation of the instrument

We comipared the key input assumptions within the Directors’ valuation model to externally and internally derved data as well as our own
assessments Key inputs included the likelihood of a transaction between Visa Inc and Visa Europe occurnng, the vafue and form of possible
consideration for the VE shares, the nature of potential clawbacks anising from Visa Europe contingent habilies, and the applicable risk,
discount factors and hkelihood applied to each possible outcome We considered the correfation between the informatien obtained and the
Jjudgements made by the Directors and evaluated the consistency of the Judgements made by the Directors with the relevant International
Financial Reporting Standards We utihised our own valuations specralists to support aur challenge of the Directors” key judgements Our
assessment included consideration of the potential risk of management bias We gathered internal and external informatron in relation to
both the charactenstics of, and the demand for, these instruments We also considered contradictory or disconfirming evidence as relevant
information Sensrtivity analysis was performed in order to assess the reasonableness of the assumptions applied by management in arrving at
the expected cash flows

CVRs Our audrt procedures included, amongst others, an assessment of the facts and arcumstances and nghts and obbgations attached to the
instrument against the accountng Iterature, and consideraton of a range of possible altematves with respect to classdication and measurement
of the mstrument.

We obtained the calculation of the carrying amount of the CVRs provided by the Group and assessed the appropriateness of the inputs mto
the calculation, recalculated the key components of the calculation and considered whether the methodology apphed was consistent with
the definttion of amortised cost under IFRS (as adopted by the EU)

The key input into the calculation was the forecast future cash flows in relation to the CVRs As the CVRs represent 90% of the net post tax
proceeds from a sale of the VE shares, the future cash flows of the CVRs are mtnnsically inked to the VE shares and therefore the
assumptions apphed are similar

Senstrvity analysis was performed in order to assess the reasonableness of the assumptions apphied by management in amving at the expected
cash flows

Financial statement disclosures We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in respect of the fair value hierarchy and




